
CITY COUNCIL MONTHLY MEETING CALENDAR

1 2 3 Municipal Court 4 5 6 7

Banks City Address 12:30pm FGS&CC 1st Friday

Planning Comm 7pm CCI 5:30pm Rural Fire Board Mtg 6pm EDC Noon

8 9 10 11 12 13 14

NO CITY COUNCIL MEETING SCHEDULED

15 CITY COUNCIL 16 17 Municipal Court 18 Red Cross Blood Drive 19 20 21

5:30 PM - WORK SESSION (CC Goals Refinement) 1pm-6:30pm, Comm Aud

6:30 PM - WORK SESSION (Succession Planning)

8:45 PM - EXECUTIVE SESSION (Labor) P&R 7am

SCC 4:45pm
Chamber Luncheon CFC 5:15pm Chamber Auction 5pm

Planning Comm 7pm TBD Western WC Fire Task TBD Library Comm 6:30pm PAC 5pm

22 23 24 25 26 Red Cross Blood Drive 27 28

NO CITY COUNCIL MEETING SCHEDULED 12:30pm-6pm, Comm Aud

HLB 6:30pm PSAC 7:30am (Canceled) Sustainability 6pm

29 30 31

Municipal Court 1 2 3 4

State of WC 6:30pm URAC 10am

Rural Fire Board Mtg 6pm EDC Noon FGS&CC 1st Friday

5 6 7 8 Informational 9 10 11

Planning Comm 7pm CCI 5:30pm 

12 CITY COUNCIL 13 14 Municipal Court 15 SWCEPC MEETING 16 17 18

P&R 7am

CFC 5:15pm

Library Comm 6:30pm

19 Chamber Luncheon 20 21 22 Red Cross Blood Drive 23 24 25

1pm-6:30pm, Comm Aud

Planning Comm 7pm Western WC Fire Task TBD PSAC 7:30am Sustainability 6pm CFC Tree Plant 10am

26 CITY COUNCIL 27 28 29 30

HLB 6:30pm

1 2

FGS&CC 1st Friday

3 4 5 Municipal Court 6 Budget Committee 7 8 9

Planning Comm 7pm CCI 5:30pm Rural Fire Board Mtg 6pm EDC Noon

10 CITY COUNCIL 11 12 13 Budget Committee 14 15 16

17 Chamber Luncheon 18 19 Municipal Court 20 Red Cross Blood Drive 21 22 23

1pm-6:30pm, Comm Aud

P&R 7am

CFC 5:15pm

Planning Comm 7pm Library Comm 6:30pm PAC 5pm

24 25 CITY COUNCIL 26 27 28 29 30

HLB 6:30pm PSAC 7:30am Sustainability 6pm

31

CEP Presentations

6:00 PM Comm Aud

NLC   (Mayor, Rippe out)

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Saturday

Monday Saturday

COMMUNITY AUDITORIUM

May-20
Sunday

5:30 PM - WORK SESSION(s)

7:00 PM - REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

7:00 PM - REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

COMMUNITY AUDITORIUM

FridayWednesday Thursday

Thursday Friday

6:30 PM Comm Aud

PAC 5pm

Budget Committee Meeting

3rd Meeting - If needed

6:00 PM Comm Aud

Budget Committee

Next Council Meeting 03/16

NLC Congressional Cities Conference Washington, DC   (Mayor, Rippe)

7:00 PM - REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

COMMUNITY AUDITORIUM

Tuesday

5:30 PM - WORK SESSION(s)

Next Council Meeting 04/13

Mar-20
Sunday

CITY OFFICES CLOSED

Wenzl out   03/20 - 03/27

Wenzl out   03/20 - 03/27

1st Meeting

6:00 PM Comm Aud

2nd Meeting

6:00 PM Comm Aud

Apr-20
Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday

5:30 PM - WORK SESSION(s)

7:00 PM - REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

COMMUNITY AUDITORIUM

5:30 PM - WORK SESSION(s)

7:00 PM - REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

COMMUNITY AUDITORIUM

Meeting dates/times may change or cancel without advanced notice; please confirm with meeting agendas. 

TBD=To Be Determined 3/11/2020 Calendar CC (Autosaved)
PDF Page 1



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

PDF Page 2



Page 1 of 4 

CITY OF FOREST GROVE            P. O. BOX 326          FOREST GROVE, OR 97116            503-992-3200         www.forestgrove-or.gov 

 

 
 
 
  

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA  MONDAY, MARCH 16, 2020 
 COMMUNITY AUDITORIUM 
 1915 MAIN STREET 

 
 
 
 
 
 

5:30 PM WORK SESSION (Council Goals & Objectives Refinement; Team Agreement) 
6:30 PM WORK SESSION (Succession Planning; Employee Retirement) 
7:00 PM  CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 
8:45 PM EXECUTIVE SESSION (Labor Negotiations) 

  

Forest Grove City Council Meetings are televised live by Tualatin Valley Community Television (TVCTV) 
Government Access Programming, Ch 30.  To obtain the programming schedule, please contact TVCTV at 
503.629.8534 or visit http://www.tvctv.org/government meetings-forest-grove. 
 

    

    

 PETER B. TRUAX, MAYOR 
 Malynda H. Wenzl, Council President    Mariana Valenzuela 
 Timothy A. Rippe      Adolph “Val” Valfre, Jr. 
 Elena Uhing    VACANCY 
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

All meetings of the City Council are open to the public and all persons are permitted to attend any meeting except as otherwise 
provided by ORS 192. The public may address the Council as follows: 
 
  Public Hearings – Public hearings are held on each matter required by state law or City policy. Anyone wishing to testify should 
sign in for any Public Hearing prior to the meeting. The presiding officer will review the complete hearing instructions prior to 
testimony.  The presiding officer will call the individual or group by the name given on the sign in form. When addressing the 
Council, please use the witness table (center front of the room). Each person should speak clearly into the microphone and must 
state his or her name and give an address for the record. All testimony is electronically recorded. In the interest of time, Public 
Hearing testimony is limited to three minutes unless the presiding officer grants an extension. Written or oral testimony is heard 
prior to any Council action.   
 
  Citizen Communications – Anyone wishing to address the Council on an issue not on the agenda should sign in for Citizen 
Communications prior to the meeting. The presiding officer will call the individual or group by the name given on the sign in form.  
When addressing the Council, please use the witness table (center front of the room). Each person should speak clearly into the 
microphone and must state his or her name and give an address for the record. All testimony is electronically recorded. In  the 
interest of time, Citizen Communications is limited to two minutes unless the presiding officer grants an extension.  
 
The public may not address items on the agenda unless the item is a public hearing. Routinely, members of the public speak during 
Citizen Communications and Public Hearings. If you have questions about the agenda or have an issue that you would like to 
address to the Council, please contact the City Recorder, aruggles@forestgrove-or.gov, 503-992-3235. 
 
City Council meetings are handicap accessible. Assistive Listening Devices (ALD) or qualified sign language interpreters are 
available for persons with impaired hearing or speech. For any special accommodations, please contact the City Recorder, 
aruggles@forestgrove-or.gov, 503-992-3235, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.   

 

PDF Page 3

http://www.tvctv.org/government%20meetings-forest-grove
mailto:aruggles@forestgrove-or.gov
mailto:aruggles@forestgrove-or.gov


   FOREST GROVE CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
MARCH 16, 2020 

Page 2 of 4 
    
    
 

(PowerPoint Presentation) 
Peter Truax, Mayor 

 

Jesse VanderZanden, City Manager 
 

5:30  WORK SESSION: COUNCIL GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 
REFINEMENT AND COUNCIL TEAM AGREEMENT 
 

    

(PowerPoint Presentation) 
Brenda Camilli, Human Resources 

Manager 
 

Paul Downey, Administrative 
Services Director 

 

Jesse VanderZanden, City Manager 
 

6:30  WORK SESSION: SUCCESSION PLANNING: EMPLOYEE 
RETIREMENT 
The City Council will convene in the Community Auditorium 
– Conference Room to conduct the above work session(s). 
The public is invited to attend and observe the work 
session(s); however, no public comment will be taken. The 
Council will take no formal action during the work session(s). 

    

    
 7:00 1. REGULAR MEETING: Roll Call and Pledge of Allegiance 
    

 7:05 1. A. SPECIAL RECOGNITION: 
    

Timothy Rippe, Council Liaison 
Peter Truax, Mayor   

   Sandra P. Garcia, Sister Cities Committee  
    

 7:15 1. B. PROCLAMATION:  
    

Val Valfre, Council Liaison     National Community Development Week, April 13 – 
April 17, 2020 

    
  2. CITIZEN COMMUNICATIONS: Anyone wishing to speak to 

Council on an item not on the agenda may be heard at this 
time.  Please sign-in before the meeting on the Citizen 
Communications form posted in the foyer.  In the interest of 
time, please limit comments to two minutes.  Thank you. 

    

  3. CONSENT AGENDA:  See Page 4  
    
  4. ADDITIONS/DELETIONS: 
    
  5. PRESENTATIONS: 
    

(PowerPoint Presentation) 7:25 5. A.   Ballot Measure 34-296 Proposed Washington County 
Replacement Local Option Levy for Countywide 
Public Safety Services, Jon Shaver, Chief Deputy, 
Sheriff’s Office, and Karleigh Mollahan, 
Community Corrections Center Manager 

    

(PowerPoint Presentation) 7:40 5. B.   Ballot Measure 34-297 Proposed Washington County 
Renewal of Local Option Levy to Support Countywide 
Library Services, Lisa Tattersall, Washington County 
Cooperative Library Services (WCCLS) Manager  

    
Peter Truax, Mayor  7:55 

 
6. CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION NO. 2020-26 SUPPORTING 

WASHINGTON COUNTY REPLACEMENT LOCAL 
OPTION LEVY FOR COUNTYWIDE PUBLIC SAFETY 
SERVICES BALLOT MEASURE 34-296 

PDF Page 4



    
   FOREST GROVE CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

MARCH 16, 2020 
Page 3 of 4 

    
    

Peter Truax, Mayor  8:00 
 

7. CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION NO. 2020-27 SUPPORTING 
WASHINGTON COUNTY RENEWAL OF LOCAL OPTION 
LEVY TO SUPPORT COUNTYWIDE LIBRARY SERVICES  
BALLOT MEASURE 34-297 

    
Paul Downey, Administrative 

Services Director 
 

Jesse VanderZanden, City Manager 
 

8:05 
 

8. RESOLUTION NO. 2020-28 OF THE CITY OF FOREST 
GROVE, OREGON, AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF 
REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS TO REFINANCE 
PROJECTS FOR PACIFIC UNIVERSITY 

    
City Councilors 8:10 9. CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS: 

    
Jesse VanderZanden, City Manager   8:30 10. CITY MANAGER'S REPORT: 

    
Peter Truax, Mayor  8:35 11. MAYOR’S REPORT: 

    
 8:40 12. ADJOURNMENT: 
    
    

Brenda Camilli, Human Resources 
Manager 

 

Jesse VanderZanden, City Manager 

8:45 
 

 
 EXECUTIVE SESSIONS ARE CLOSED TO THE PUBLIC. 

Representatives of the news media and designated staff 
may attend Executive Session(s). Representatives of the 
news media are specifically directed not to report (tape/video 
record) any of the deliberations during the Executive 
Session, except to state the general subject of the session 
as previously announced. No Executive Session may be 
held for the purpose of taking final action or making any final 
decision. The executive session is subject to cancellation.  
 
The City Council will convene in the Community Auditorium– 
Conference Room to hold the following executive sessions: 
 
In accordance with ORS 192.660(2)(d) to conduct 
deliberations with person designated by the governing 
body to carry on labor negotiations. 

    

 9:30  ADJOURNMENT: 
    

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

PDF Page 5



    
   FOREST GROVE CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

MARCH 16, 2020 
Page 4 of 4 

    
3.  CONSENT AGENDA: Items under the Consent Agenda are considered 

routine and will be adopted with a single motion, without separate discussion.  
Council members who wish to remove an item from the Consent Agenda 
may do so prior to the motion to approve the item(s). Any item(s) removed 
from the Consent Agenda will be discussed and acted upon following the 
approval of the remaining Consent Agenda item(s).  

 
A. Approve City Council Regular Meeting Minutes of February 10, 2020.  
B. Approve City Council Work Session (Council/Management Goal-

Setting Retreat) Meeting Minutes of February 15, 2020. 
C. Approve City Council Work Session (Staff Succession Planning 

Update) Meeting Minutes of February 24, 2020. 
D. Approve City Council Regular Meeting Minutes of February 24, 2020. 
E. Approve City Council Executive Session (Exempt Records) Meeting 

Minutes of February 24, 2020. 
F. Accept Community Forestry Commission Meeting Minutes of January 

15, 2020. 
G. Accept Historic Landmarks Board Meeting Minutes of January 28, 

2020. 
H. Community Development Department Monthly Building Activity 

Informational Report for February, 2020. 
I. Endorse New Liquor License Application (Limited On-Premises Sales) 

for Bamen Ramen, 2024 19th Avenue, Building A (Applicant: Jason 
Jewett) 

J. Endorse Liquor License Renewal Applications for Year 2020: 
1) 7-Eleven, 2001 Yew Street, Off-Premises Sales 
2) Diversity Café, 2104 Main Street, Full On-Premises Sales and 

Catering 
3) Forest Grove Theater, 1911 Pacific Avenue, Limited On-Premises 

Sales 
4) Kaiser Brewing Company, 1607 Hawthorne Street, Brewery – 

Public House 
5) Kama Aina, 1910 Main Street, Suite A, Full On-Premises Sales and 

Off-Premises Sales 
6) La Estrella Tacos, 2432 – 2434 19th Avenue, Limited On-Premises 

Sales Premises Sales  
7) McMenamin’s Grand Lodge, 3505 Pacific Avenue, Full On-

Premises Sales 
8) Pizza Schmizza, 2042 Main Street, Limited On-Premises Sales 
9) The Growler Garage, 1837 Pacific Avenue, Suite 133, Off-Premises 

Sales and Limited On-Premises Sales 
 

 

PDF Page 6



CITY COUNCIL 
GOALS

20
20

/
21

1924 Council Street
Forest Grove, Oregon 97116

CITY OF FOREST GROVE
W : www.forestgrove-or.gov
P  : (503)992-3200

March 10, 2020

DRAFT

PDF Page 7



INTRODUCTION

The City of Forest Grove is pleased to present the summary of their annual 
goal-setting retreat. The City Council and Management Team conducted 
a one-day retreat on February 15, 2020 to discuss current community 
projects and issues and provide City staff with direction regarding the 
Council’s priorities for the coming years.  The City hired a professional 
facilitator, Sara Singer Wilson of SSW Consulting to prepare and guide 
the group through their discussion. In advance of the retreat, City staff 
presented an update on the progress of the 2019 Council goals to provide 
context for the upcoming session. To prepare the agenda, SSW conducted 
outreach with the Council and staff to identify and discuss their goals and 
expected outcomes for the session. The agenda for the discussion was 
based on the following outcomes identified during the outreach process: 

 » Confirm and/or redirect priorities on current Council goals;
 » Identify new goals and priorities; 
 » Build a strong and cohesive team to communicate and advance the 

goals; and, 
 » Outline the community engagement goals for the visioning process.

The City Council and staff worked closely together to identify goals 
that would build on the work and success of previous years, while also 
addressing new challenges and/or shifting community needs. The City 
will work on these goals in addition to maintaining the City’s high-quality 
core services. 

The team’s engagement and participation were much appreciated, and we 
look forward to working together with the community and our partners as 
we set out to advance these goals. 

-City of Forest Grove City Council + Management Team

2  || COUNCIL GOALS 2020/21CITY OF FOREST GROVE

PDF Page 8



COUNCIL GOALS
2020/21

INTRODUCTION 02

OUR TEAM 04

05FOREST GROVE’S VISION

06SETTING THE CONTEXT

072020 GOALS + OBJECTIVES

10GRAPHIC SUMMARY

11WORKING TOGETHER

TABLE OF CONTENTS

12REPORTING PROGRESS

13APPENDIX

  ||  3COUNCIL GOALS 2020/21 CITY OF FOREST GROVE

PDF Page 9



OUR TEAM

Jesse VanderZanden, City Manager
Paul Downey, Administrative Services Director
Tom Gamble, Parks and Recreation Director
Keith Hormann, Light & Power Director
Jeff King, Economic Development Manager
Michael Kinkade, Fire Chief
Bryan Pohl, Community Development Director
Henry Reimann, Interim Police Chief
Greg Robertson, Public Works Director
Anna Ruggles, City Recorder
Colleen Winters, Library Director

CITY COUNCIL

CITY MANAGEMENT TEAM

Peter B. Truax, Mayor
Malynda Wenzl, Council President
Timothy A. Rippe, Councilor
Elena Uhing, Councilor
Mariana E. Valenzuela, Councilor
Adolph “Val” Valfre, Jr., Councilor

SARA SINGER WILSON, Principal/Owner

CONSULTANT/FACILITATOR

4  || COUNCIL GOALS 2020/21CITY OF FOREST GROVE

PDF Page 10



FOREST GROVE’S VISION

Forest is a friendly, twenty-first century, small, full-service city. It was settled in 1841 by pioneers 
who valued respect for education, faith, enterprise, service to humanity, and the bountiful 
resources of the Tualatin Plain. Those values persist to inspire a common vision for a high quality 
of life in a thriving and progressive community that reaches om its historical commercial core 
around Pacific University to a horizon of forests, farms, vineyards, and the Coast Range. As an 
engaged and diverse people, we assure sustainability in our economy and our environment, 
thus supporting a community that nurtures our youth, educates all residents, and attracts and 
welcomes visitors. Forest Grove is itself a destination that thrives by design and is our home.

In 2019, the City Council included an objective to update the community vision and identify 
community values. In October 2019, the Council identified their desired outcomes for the 
community visioning process: 

 » Develop an updated vision that is succinct and provides unity of purpose and direction for 
the community and its partners;

 » Identify and communicate the values that reflect the Forest Grove community of today;  
 » Develop a vision plan and values that are flexible and responsive to the changing needs of 

the community. It should include a process for regular plan evaluation and updates; and, 
 » The engagement plan should be inclusive of the greater community. We should engage 

those who care about the future of Forest Grove including residents, community partners, 
and people beyond the city limits. The engagement should be intentional about reaching 
those who are not typically represented. 

To continue this work, one of the desired outcomes for retreat was to outline the community 
engagement goals for visioning process. The team had intended to spend time discussing 
engagement strategy; however, due to time constraints the Council decided the discussion on 
the community vision engagement would be continued at a future meeting. 

  ||  5COUNCIL GOALS 2020/21 CITY OF FOREST GROVE

PDF Page 11



On February 10, 2020, the City Council held a Work Session is to review progress on the City Council’s 2019 
Goals and Objectives to help contextualize the February 15th City Council Retreat and in doing so, afford 
Councilors additional opportunity to have focused discussion during the Retreat. The progress report that 
was presented is included in the Appendix. 

Additionally, during the retreat, the City Council raised other challenges or opportunities to be considered 
during the goal-setting process as shown in the visual below. 

SETTING THE CONTEXT

2019 GOALS + PROJECTS CURRENTLY UNDERWAY

Scanned with CamScanner

6  || COUNCIL GOALS 2020/21CITY OF FOREST GROVE

PDF Page 12



The Council reviewed the context provided in the annual report and the Council discussion that followed. They convened 

with staff in small groups to discuss the ideas and their top priorities. These ideas were mapped during a group discussion 

to look for emerging common themes. The ideas were refined by the group and the Council indicated their top priorities 

in each goal area. The goals are listed based on the priorities expressed by Council. 

Following the retreat, the management team met to review and further refine the results and to clarify the goals and 

objectives into actionable items. The team also identified an estimated timeline for each action based on current staffing 

and workload. The goals and objectives will be addressed by the organization in their work plan in addition to projects 

already underway and their commitment to delivering quality City services to the Forest Grove community. The Council 

will reconvene as needed to discuss progress on these projects and make updates where needed.

2020 COUNCIL GOALS

GOALS + OBJECTIVES STAFF LEAD TIMELINE

Develop a DEI plan that includes an assessment of 

hiring practices and equitable delivery of city services. 

Continue DEI Advisory Team and internal assessment.  

GOAL 1: SUPPORT DIVERSITY, EQUITY, AND INCLUSION IN THE DELIVERY OF CITY SERVICES 

AND OPERATIONS. 

ADM

ADM

CM

2 Years

2 Years

1 YearSupport training for DEI Advisory Team, Directors, and 

Council.  

GOAL 2: ENABLE HOUSING SUPPLY AND AFFORDABILITY. 

Evaluate scalable SDC’s. CD 2 Years

Develop Oak Street Plan. CD 1 Year

Complete Neighborhood Mixed Use Zone Refinement. CD 1 Year

Evaluate parking requirements relative to housing 

density. 
CD 2 Years

Assess capacity for CD to meet the increasing 

demands of planned growth.   
CD 1 Year

Refine West Side Plan Financial Plan. CD 3 Years

  ||  7COUNCIL GOALS 2020/21 CITY OF FOREST GROVE

PDF Page 13



GOALS + OBJECTIVES STAFF LEAD TIMELINE

Partner to help those experiencing homelessness.

Partner with Forest Grove School District to enhance 

library coordination.

GOAL 3: ENHANCE PARTNERSHIPS. 

CM

LIB

CD

2 Years

2 Years

2 YearsPartner to address downtown parking needs. 

Collaborate with community partners to plan for the 

City’s sesquicentennial. CM 2 Years

Collaborate with regional and local partners to attract 

higher wage jobs. 
ED 2 Years

Develop relationships between student liaisons and 

student government. 
CM 1 Year

GOAL 4: IMPROVE INTERNAL AND EXTERNAL COMMUNICATIONS AND ENGAGEMENT. 

Complete and implement the Communications Plan. 

Provide information and outreach materials that 

provide and overview an tips for engaging in the public 

process. 

ADM

CD

2 Years

1 Year

Engage community in the development of a community 

vision and values. CM 2 Years

Provide routine customer service training to City 

staff to promote consistent, positive service to the 

community. 

ADM 1 Year

8  || COUNCIL GOALS 2020/21CITY OF FOREST GROVE

PDF Page 14



GOALS + OBJECTIVES STAFF LEAD TIMELINE

GOAL 6: PROMOTE SUSTAINABLE TRANSPORTATION ALTERNATIVES AND ENHANCE MOBILITY. 

Identify high use areas with no sidewalks and 

include in public works projects. 
PW 2 Years

Incorporate sidewalk and curb ADA retrofits into 

public works projects.
PW 3 Years

Incorporate electric and/or hybrid vehicles into the 

City fleet. 
LP 3 Years

Provide adequate charging stations at public 

facilities.
PW 1 Year

Prioritize Transportation Development Tax (TDT) 

projects. 
PW 1 Year

Complete Fire Task Force work to determine effect on 

City finances. 

Plan for future police facility. 

GOAL 5: MAINTAIN AND ENSURE FINANCIAL AND ORGANIZATIONAL SUSTAINABILITY.

ADM/LE

ADM/POL

CD/ED

2 Years

1 Year

1 YearEnsure adequate long-term industrial and commercial 

property supply. 

Prepare a five-year general fund financial plan. ADM 2 Years

GOAL 7: EXPAND RECREATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES.

Develop implementation plan for Stites, N. Lincoln, 

and A.T. Smith properties.  

Partner to study Eastside Park. 

PARKS

PARKS

1 Year

1 Year

Support Council Creek Trail development.
PARKS 3 Years

Partner to enhance recreation coordination. 
PARKS 2 Years

  ||  9COUNCIL GOALS 2020/21 CITY OF FOREST GROVE

PDF Page 15



GRAPHIC SUMMARY

COMING SOON...FOLLOWING ADOPTION OF GOALS 
+ PRIORITIES

10  || COUNCIL GOALS 2020/21CITY OF FOREST GROVE

PDF Page 16



WORKING TOGETHER

In addition, the City Council discussed what is required for their success as an elected body. The Council expressed their 

commitment to…

The Council and staff appreciate the positive and collaborative relationship that has been established over the years. The team 

discussed what would support success in implementing the goals in the coming years. The list below is a summary of the key 

success factors identified by the team: 

WE WILL...

 » Promote civility

 » Embrace and encourage diverse backgrounds

 » Practice active listening

 » Provide more opportunities for brainstorming during work sessions

 » Police and enforce team rules. Once a decision is made, we move on.

 » Respect individual perspectives

 » Share the council workload providing clear assignments that utilize individual strengths while also building   

 capacity for future leadership opportunities

 » Attend meetings and be prepared. 

 » Respect family first

EXCELLENT COMMUNICATION: Clear and consistent two-way communication between the City Council and staff. 

CLEAR GOALS AND OBJECTIVES:  The goals and objectives are clearly communicated and are supported with adequate 

resources for implementation. 

AUTHENTIC: An environment that encourages a realistic, direct and honest assessment of issues and developing solutions 

that are financially feasible. 

ONE TEAM: We operate as a team and accept decisions once they have been made, offering our full support for 

implementation. 

TIMELY INFORMATION: Staff will provide expertise and data to support the Council’s decision-making process, and the 

Council will be clear in their requests for information and patient while staff researches and prepares a response. Information 

will be delivered in a timely manner. 

NO SURPRISES: We commit to provide information or knowledge of any critical issues and/or potential concerns. 

PREPARED: We come to the table prepared, reviewing meeting materials, anticipating questions and concerns, and providing 

advance communication of issues or concerns when needed. 

SHARED COMMUNITY COMMITMENT: We recognize our shared commitment to providing the best city services to 

everyone in the Forest Grove community. 

  ||  11COUNCIL GOALS 2020/21 CITY OF FOREST GROVE

PDF Page 17



REPORTING PROGRESS

The City’s Management team is tasked with advancing these goals using the resources allocated by the Council. To ensure success, 

City staff will provide quarterly updates on the progress of the Council’s goals. For additional support or clarification, staff will 

schedule time at a Council Work Session to seek Council’s direction as needed. In January 2021, staff will present the Council with 

an annual report highlighting the progress on the goals. 

This implementation structure creates accountability and ensures ongoing communication and collaboration between the Council 

and staff in advancing these goals to better the Forest Grove community. Additionally, the management team will communicate the 

goals and objectives to the organization to build further understanding and support for advancing this work. Staff’s contributions 

to these goals will be highlighted and recognized in the progress reports to the Council. 

12  || COUNCIL GOALS 2020/21CITY OF FOREST GROVE

PDF Page 18



APPENDIX

During the retreat, other topics were raised that were not related to the goal setting, but were identified as parking lot topics for 

future discussion. 

PARKING LOT TOPICS

 » Definition of full-service City

 » Have a conversation about engaging outlying community members

  ||  13COUNCIL GOALS 2020/21 CITY OF FOREST GROVE

PDF Page 19



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

PDF Page 20



CITY COUNCIL 
GOALS and 
OBJECTIVES
FY2019-20
FY2020+

DRAFT

PDF Page 21



DRAFT

PDF Page 22



FOREST GROVE IS A DESTINATION THAT OFFERS VISITORS AND RESIDENTS:
A rich heritage preserved by honoring the city’s natural, cultural, and historic treasures while also embracing 
the future.

A centrally located gateway to forests, waterways, beaches, and mountains; this wealth of resources is cherished 
and preserved to foster sport, recreation, reflection, and leisure.

Arts & culture that abound throughout the year; we celebrate our cultures and participate in a wide variety of 
visual and performing arts and festivals.

A community recognized for its commitment to conserve, preserve, protect and restore our natural assets.

FOREST GROVE IS A COMMUNITY BY DESIGN THROUGH:
Participation of an engaged public and accessible, responsive government.

Planning that considers and accommodates both the desires and needs of all community members to ensure 
their quality of life and prosperity.

Sustainable transportation modes, systems, and networks that provide opportunities for all to conveniently and 
safely move about within and outside of the community.

Economic development that encourages innovative, diverse and ecologically sound enterprises that provide 
ample opportunities for employment, and ensures the vitality of the community.

Fiscally sound funding of quality public safety and municipal services including locally owned public utility and 
watershed.

FOREST GROVE IS HOME TO:
Individuals who are respected and valued for their experience, abilities, and differences, and where all 
residents are included in the life of the community through excellent education, recreation, and social 
programs.

Young people who are nurtured and encouraged to achieve their full potential.

Families of every size and description who have community resources needed for lifelong learning and 
development.

Older residents whose ongoing leadership, wisdom and investment in the community build the foundation for 
our future.

Distinctive neighborhoods replete with a variety of accessible housing options, schools, parks, places of worship 
and social gathering, and farmlands and open spaces.

A community in harmony, bound by commonly shared respect for its residents, natural resources, economic 
vitality, and its active role in a global society.

This statement is written and designed to reflect the best of what exists now, and what we aspire to become, 
as a community. 

Forest Grove is a �iendly, twenty-first century, small, full service city. It was settled in 1841 by pioneers who 
valued respect for education, faith, enterprise, service to humanity, and the bountiful resources of the 
Tualatin Plain. Those values persist to inspire a common vision for a high quality of life in a thriving and 
progressive community that reaches �om its historical commercial core around Pacific University to a 
horizon of forests, farms, vineyards, and the Coast Range. As an engaged and diverse people, we assure 
sustainability in our economy and our environment, thus supporting a community that nurtures our youth, 
educates all residents, and attracts and welcomes visitors. Forest Grove is itself a destination that thrives by design 
and is our home.

CITY COUNCIL VISION STATEMENT
ADOPTED BY CITY COUNCIL

RESOLUTION 2007-28 ON JUNE 11, 2007

DRAFT

PDF Page 23



������
Provide Safe, Livable, 

and Sustainable 
Neighborhoods

������
Manage an Effective 

Financial Plan to 
Provide Quality 
Service Levels

������
Advance the Interests 

of  Forest Grove in 
Local, State, and 
National Affairs

COUNCIL GOALS & OBJECTIVES FY2019-20 DRAFT

PDF Page 24



������
Provide Safe, Livable, 

and Sustainable 
Neighborhoods

������
Manage an Effective 

Financial Plan to 
Provide Quality 
Service Levels

������
Advance the Interests 

of  Forest Grove in 
Local, State, and 
National Affairs

Implement Conservation 
Measures

Develop Oak Street Area
Concept Plan

Implement Parks Master Plan 

Implement Town Center 
Program 

Equity Assessment and 
Education

Develop Police Strategic Plan

Partner to Increase 
Affordable Housing 

Partner to Address 
Homelessness

Plan for Local Option 
Levy

Study Fire Governance 
Options

Plan for Future Police 
Facility

Develop Staff Succession 
Plan

Prioritize Transportation 
Development Tax (TDT) 
Projects

Develop Core Values and 
Update Vision Statement 

Develop Communications 
Plan 

Develop Tourism Program

Update Economic 
Development Strategic 
Plan

Complete Boards and 
Commissions Review

Investigate Federal Grant 
Opportunities

Review Council Rules and 
Team Agreement

Plan for City 
Sesquicentennial

OBJECTIVES OBJECTIVES OBJECTIVES

COUNCIL GOALS & OBJECTIVES FY2019-20 DRAFT

PDF Page 25



OBJECTIVE DEPT ACTION STATUS B/C

1.1 Implement 
 Conservation 
 Measures

1.2 Develop Oak 
 Street Area 
 Concept Plan

1.3 Implement 
 Parks Master 
 Plan 

1.4 Implement 
 Town Center 
 Program

1.5 Equity 
 Assessment 
 and Education

PW
LP

CD

P/R

CD

ADM

Sustainability

Planning
EDC

Parks & Rec

Planning
Public Arts
CFC
EDC

CCI
Sustainability

• Continue Streetlight LED 
 Replacement Program (Year 2 of  4). 
• Complete feasibility study for solar 
 on Light & Power-owned land.
• Implement low-flow toilet program.

• Initiate in January 2020. 

• Complete public outreach and 
 schematic design for Stites, N. 
 Lincoln, and A.T. Smith. 
• Parks & Rec review of  East Side Park. 
• Parks & Rec review of  Veterans 
 Memorial park. 

• Complete downtown parking study.
• Complete street trees assessment and 
 develop policy recommendations.
• Develop concept design for 
 downtown crosswalks.

• Research and define framework for 
 equity discussion. 

Year 2 of  4 streetlight LED 
replacement complete. Year 3 begins 
7/1. Solar study completed. Briefed to 
SC and Council. Low-flow toilet 
program completed and implemented. 
Light and Power Energy Conservation 
Program marketed extensively. 

Work Session to determine purpose 
and scope. RFP proprosals due 
February 13, 2020.

Schematic Design for Stites, N. 
Lincoln, and AT Smith completed. 
P/R considered East Side Park and 
added to scope of  Schematic Design. 
P/R considered Veterans Memorial 
Park and supported concept.

Downtown Parking Study presentation 
to Council 2/10. Street Trees 
Assessment approved by Council. Street 
Tree Management Plan included in 
Festival Street RFP (see URA). 
Downtown crosswalk design completed. 
Construction Summer, 2020. 

Equity Advisory Team composed and 
met twice. Inventory of  City equity 
efforts nearly complete. Team working 
on training plan and equity definition.

GOAL 1 – PROVIDE SAFE, LIVABLE, AND 
SUSTAINABLE NEIGHBORHOODS

COUNCIL GOALS & OBJECTIVES FY2019-20

04

DRAFT

PDF Page 26



1.6 Develop 
 Police 
 Strategic Plan

1.7 Promote 
 Affordable 
 Housing 
 Strategies

1.8 Partner to 
 Address 
 Homelessness 

Police

CD

LIB
P/R
CD

PSAC

Planning

TBD

• Complete workload analysis and 
 determine Phase II scope.

• Complete housing needs analysis.  
• Collaborate with County on 
 affordable housing projects in
 Forest Grove.
• Land review: Metro TOD, ODOT, 
 County.
• Assure compliance with HB 4006 
 re: severe rent burden households.

• Departmental participation in 
 non-profit Community Coalition to 
 clarify City assistance. 

GOAL 1 – PROVIDE SAFE, LIVABLE, AND 
SUSTAINABLE NEIGHBORHOODS

COUNCIL GOALS & OBJECTIVES FY2019-20

05

OBJECTIVE DEPT ACTION STATUS B/C

Initial data provided and City 
commented. Need to re-evaluate 
project. 

Housing Needs Analysis Complete. 
Extensive collaboration with County 
and Metro. County and Metro looking 
at several sites. Reviewed Metro, 
County, and State lands w/in City 
limits. Held two Severe Rent Burden 
meetings. Passed ordinance to defer 
SDCs for affordable housing. Issuing 
application for non-profit property tax 
exemption. Prepared collateral material 
on affordable housing incentives. 
Working with County and State on 
implementing HB 2001 and 2003.

City participating in Western 
Washington County Anti-Poverty Task 
Force. CEP grant of  $6,600 for 
portable shower. CEP grant of  $15,300 
for temporary shelters. CEP grant of  
$5,000 for veteran home preservation. 
Council passed a temporary shelter 
ordinance.  

DRAFT

PDF Page 27



2.9 Plan for Local 
 Option Levy

2.10 Study Fire
 Governance 
 Options

2.11 Plan for 
 Future 
 Police Facility 

2.12 Develop Staff
 Succession 
 Plan 

2.13 Prioritize
 Transportation 
 Development 
 Tax (TDT) 
 Projects

ADM

ADM
Fire

ADM
Police

ADM

ENG
CD

PSAC

PSAC

PSAC
CCI

City Council

City Council

• No action necessary.

• Participate in monthly Fire Task 
 Force meetings.   
• Council consideration of  Fire 
 Governance Foundational Principles.

• Finalize scope and budget for 
 Council consideration.
• Develop and implement public 
 outreach plan.

• Complete Executive Summary.

• Establish TDT project priorities, 
 funding, and timelines. 

GOAL 2 – MANAGE AN EFFECTIVE FINANCIAL 
PLAN TO PROVIDE QUALITY SERVICE LEVELS

COUNCIL GOALS & OBJECTIVES FY2019-20

06

No update.

Western Washington County Fire Task 
Force formed. Foundational Principles 
to guide Task Force approved by 
Council. Council Work Session 
consensus to further study Fire District.

Cost estimate and 35% design 
complete. Extensive public outreach 
including public speaking, video, 
website, public tours, open house, utility 
billing, rack cards, posters, and social 
media. Council consensus to consider a 
poll and subsequent ballot timing. 

City-Wide Employee Survey completed. 
Very high participation. Directors 
briefed on results. Council presentation 
3/16.

Work Session to prioritize TDT 
funding. Agreed to consider 
TDT-eligible roads in Oak Street RFP.

OBJECTIVE DEPT ACTION STATUS B/C

DRAFT

PDF Page 28



3.14 Develop Core 
 Values and 
 Update Vision 
 Statement

3.15 Develop 
 Communications 
 Plan

3.16 Develop 
 Tourism
 Program

3.17 Update 
 Economic 
 Development  
 Strategic Plan

3.18 Complete 
 Boards & 
 Commissions 
 Review

ADM

ADM

ADM

ED

ADM

City Council

City Council

EDC

EDC

City Council

• Develop scope and process.

• Develop scope, budget, and initiate 
 planning.

• Inventory and assess existing tourism 
 marketing efforts.
• Draft tourism marketing plan.

• Include roles and responsibilities of  
 City, EDC, and Chamber of  
 Commerce.
• Include section on Urban Renewal 
 Agency.
• Include section on Tourism.

• Reconcile B/C comments and 
 consider Council Rule changes.
• Develop bylaw template and update 
 bylaws.

GOAL 3 – ADVANCE THE INTERESTS OF FOREST 
GROVE IN LOCAL, STATE, AND NATIONAL AFFAIRS

COUNCIL GOALS & OBJECTIVES FY2019-20

07

OBJECTIVE DEPT ACTION STATUS B/C

Work Session to determine purpose 
and scope. Consultant hired. 
Vision/Values scope folded into 2020 
Retreat.

Completed draft Communications Plan.
Work Session with consultant planned 
3/16. Finalize and implement 
thereafter.

Tourism Advisory Committee (TAC) 
active. Consultants selected to provide 
Strategic, Marketing, and Branding 
Plans. 

Strategic Plan adopted by City Council.
Plan includes activity and performance 
measures, stakeholder roles, and urban 
renewal/tourism projects.

Bylaw template developed and B/Cs are 
updating them.

DRAFT

PDF Page 29



3.19 Investigate 
 Federal Grant 
 Opportunities

3.20 Review 
 Council 
 Rules and 
 Team 
 Agreement

3.21 Plan for City 
Sesquicentennial

ADM

ADM

ADM

City Council

All

• Feasibility analysis to determine if  
 outside assistance is needed.

• Form review committee and initiate 
 meetings.

• Every 150 years.
• Appoint sesquicentennial committee 
 and hold first meeting.

GOAL 3 – ADVANCE THE INTERESTS OF FOREST 
GROVE IN LOCAL, STATE, AND NATIONAL AFFAIRS

COUNCIL GOALS & OBJECTIVES FY2019-20

08

RFI proposals reviewed by Council. 
Cost is $60,000 - $80,000; not 
including grant writing assistance.

Need additional clarification of  scope. 
Recommend Work Session.

Sesquicentennial Committee outline 
passed by Council. Explore linkage to 
Vision/Values process.

OBJECTIVE DEPT ACTION STATUS B/C

DRAFT

PDF Page 30



OBJECTIVE DEPT ACTION B/C

1.1 Implement 
 Conservation 
 Measures

1.2 Develop 
 Oak Street Area 
 Concept Plan

1.3 Implement Parks 
 Master Plan

1.4 Implement Town 
 Center Program

1.5 Equity 
 Assessment and 
 Education

PW
LP

CD

PR

CD

ADM

City Council

Planning
EDC

Parks and 
Recreation

Planning
Public Arts
CFC
EDC

CCI
Sustainability

• Implement Streetlight LED 
 Replacement Program (Year 3 of  4).
• Determine solar array on Light & 
 Power-owned land.

• Initiate and complete concept plan.
• Council consideration of  concept 
 plan.

• Complete implementation plan for 
 Stites, N. Lincoln, and A.T. Smith.

• Implement downtown parking study.
• Implement street tree policy.
• Construct one downtown crosswalk.

• Consider results of  framework 
 discussion. 
• Examples could include: training for 
 Council and staff, public outreach, 
 B/C reform, additional bilingual 
 collateral materials.

GOAL 1 – PROVIDE SAFE, LIVABLE, AND 
SUSTAINABLE NEIGHBORHOODS

COUNCIL GOALS & OBJECTIVES FY2020+

09

DRAFT

PDF Page 31



OBJECTIVE DEPT ACTION B/C

1.6 Develop Police
 Strategic Plan

1.7 Promote 
 Affordable 
 Housing 
 Strategies

1.8 Partner to 
 Address 
 Homelessness

Police

CD

LIB
P/R
CD

PSAC

Planning

TBD

• Complete Phase II and implement 
 improvements.

• Housing needs analysis 
 comprehensive plan amendments. 
• Collaborate with County on 
 affordable housing projects in 
 Forest Grove.

• Continue partnerships/participation 
 toward goals. 

GOAL 1 – PROVIDE SAFE, LIVABLE, AND 
SUSTAINABLE NEIGHBORHOODS

COUNCIL GOALS & OBJECTIVES FY2020+

10

DRAFT

PDF Page 32



OBJECTIVE DEPT ACTION B/C

2.9 Plan for Local 
 Option Levy

2.10 Study Fire 
 Governance 
 Options

2.11 Plan for Future 
 Police Facility

2.13 Prioritize 
 Transportation 
 Development Tax 
 (TDT) Projects

ADM

ADM
Fire

ADM
Police

ENG
CD

PSAC

PSAC

PSAC
CCI

City Council

• Establish timeline for May 2022 
 ballot measure.

• Council consideration of  Fire Task 
 Force recommendations. 

• Finalize amount and timing of  
 potential bond. 
• Continue public outreach.

• Modify TSP and RTP, if  needed, to 
 accommodate. 
• Construct projects in accordance 
 with established priorities.

GOAL 2 – MANAGE AN EFFECTIVE FINANCIAL 
PLAN TO PROVIDE QUALITY SERVICE LEVELS

COUNCIL GOALS & OBJECTIVES FY2020+

11

DRAFT

PDF Page 33



OBJECTIVE DEPT ACTION B/C

3.14 Develop Core 
 Values and 
 Update Vision 
 Statement

3.15 Develop 
 Communications 
 Plan

3.16 Develop Tourism 
 Program

3.17 Update 
 Economic 
 Development 
 Strategic Plan

3.18 Complete Boards 
 & Commissions 
 Review

ADM

ADM

ADM

ED

ADM

City Council

City Council

EDC

EDC

City Council

• Complete process and finalize Vision 
 Statement and Core Values.

• Complete plan and implement 
 recommendations.

• Finalize tourism marketing plan and 
 implement recommendations. 

• Implement strategic plan. 

• Continue to implement changes.

GOAL 3 – ADVANCE THE INTERESTS OF FOREST 
GROVE IN LOCAL, STATE, AND NATIONAL AFFAIRS

COUNCIL GOALS & OBJECTIVES FY2020+

12

DRAFT

PDF Page 34



OBJECTIVE DEPT ACTION B/C

3.20 Review Council 
 Rules and Team 
 Agreement

3.21 Plan for City
 Sesquicentennial

ADM

ADM

City Council

All

• Complete review and make 
 recommendations to Council. 

• Establish recommendations for 
 City Council. 

GOAL 3 – ADVANCE THE INTERESTS OF FOREST 
GROVE IN LOCAL, STATE, AND NATIONAL AFFAIRS

COUNCIL GOALS & OBJECTIVES FY2020+

13

DRAFT

PDF Page 35



1924 Council Street
PO Box 326

Forest Grove, OR 97116-0326
503-992-3200

forestgrove-or.gov

DRAFT

FOREST O 
GROVE OREGON 

A place where families and businesses thrive. 

PDF Page 36



   CITY OF FOREST GROVE            P. O. BOX 326          FOREST GROVE, OR 97116            503-992-3200         www.forestgrove-or.gov 

 

 
CITY COUNCIL TEAM AGREEMENT 

 

Pursuant to Resolution No. 2019-14, the Agreement for City Council Conduct  
    
1. Attendance at Council meetings is first priority; if unable to attend, please contact the City 

Recorder. 
2. Be on time to meetings and read the packet prior to the meeting - be prepared to work. 
3. Mayor will take the lead in keeping the meeting and discussion focused.  
4. Distribute information in advance of Council discussion. 
5. Mayor will recognize Councilors when indicating they wish to speak. 
6. Use formal procedure (point of order, call for question, etc.) to focus the meeting.  Formal 

procedure may be used when necessary for effective discussion in lieu of Council’s usual, 
more informal, process.  Individuals should use procedure appropriately and courteously. 

7. Council meetings are televised live; this requires Council to act professionally by:  
 Treating the public and each other with courtesy; 
 Speaking in turn and on the issue;  
 No interrupting;  
 No engaging in side conversations; and 
 No personal communication on electronic devices while conducting 

business at the dais.  
9. Refrain from personal attacks, including to presenters, staff, and Council. 
10. Agree to be diplomatic about disagreement; leave disagreement at the dais and do not try 

to polarize other Councilors. 
11. Call the City Manager or designee with questions and requests prior to the meeting. 
12. Information available to one council member will be available to all, in a timely manner.  
13. Every effort shall be made to adjourn meetings by 9:30 p.m. Council recess shall be called 

if meeting extends past 9:30 p.m.  
14. Councilors may request on their own accordance one-on-one meetings with the Mayor.  

 
Individual Council Member Conduct Agreements 
 
Council Members agree to: 

 Be straightforward about goals and issues. 
 Cultivate exchange of views with other councilors. 
 Avoid saying or doing anything that would discredit or harm the City. 
 Cordial, courteous behavior in and outside of meetings. 

 
Commitments as a Council 
 

      Council strives to: 
 Continue to improve citizen involvement, awareness and participation. 
 Improve follow-up and resolution of citizen concerns or complaints. 
 Act as an advocate for the City.   

PDF Page 37



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

PDF Page 38



SUCCESSION 
PLANNING: 
EMPLOYEE 
RETIREMENT
Paul Downey, Admin. Services 

Director

Brenda Camilli, HR Manager

03/16/2020PDF Page 39



Purpose

 Based on input from the Succession Planning Work Session 

on February 24, 2020, provide information to evaluate 

whether to move employees on the City’s Defined 

Contribution Plan (DCP) (and all new qualifying General 

Service employees) to the Public Employees Retirement 

System (PERS).

 Solicit Council feedback.   

2
PDF Page 40



City’s Retirement Plans

 City currently maintains three retirement plans with 

different eligibility requirements and benefit structures:

 Defined Benefit Plan (DBP)

 Defined Contribution Plan (DCP)

 PERS

3
PDF Page 41



Definitions

 IBEW: International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers 

 AFSCME: American Federation of State and Municipal 

Employees

 FGPA: Forest Grove Police Association

 Non-sworn: support staff for Police Department

 Non-represented: employees with no union

4
PDF Page 42



Defined Benefit Plan

 Current eligibility:

 All police officers and firefighters hired before February 1, 2016 

 All IBEW, including new hires

 Full-time AFSCME and non-represented employees hired before July 1, 

2011

 Full-time non-sworn members of the FGPA hired before July 1, 2012

 Except for new IBEW employees, the DBP Plan is a closed 

plan, meaning no new members are eligible.

 Closing the DBP means it will eventually terminate.  This will 

still take many decades.

5
PDF Page 43



Defined Contribution Plan

 Current eligibility for City employees:

 All full-time AFSCME and non-represented employees hired on 

or after July 1, 2011

 All full-time non-sworn members of the FGPA hired on or after 

July 1, 2012

 All part-time AFSCME and non-represented employees 

regularly scheduled to work at least twenty (20) hours per week 

as of July 1, 2014

 All part-time FGPA employees regularly scheduled to work at 

least twenty (20) hours per week hired as of July 1, 2016

6
PDF Page 44



PERS

 Public retirement system run by the State of Oregon.  

Benefits are determined by the employee’s membership level 

in PERS: Tier 1, Tier 2, or OPSRP.

 Current eligibility for City employees:

 Police officers and firefighters hired on or after February 1, 

2016.  Includes non-represented police officers and firefighters 

(Police Chief and Captains; Fire Chief and Division Chiefs).

7
PDF Page 45



Defined Contribution (DC) Plan

 Currently 38 full and 12 part-time (0.50 FTE or >) 

employees in plan.

 Retirement benefits are determined by the accumulation of 

the contributions to the plan by the City and investment 

earnings over time.  No guaranteed level of retirement 

benefits are promised to the employee.

 Current contribution rate to the plan is up to 12% of an 

employee’s base salary (e.g. overtime pay is not included).

 Rate is fixed unless changed by the City.  City controls the 

rate and term of the plan which could be changed by the City 

or through negotiation with bargaining units.

8
PDF Page 46



PERS

 Will focus on OPSRP (Tier 3) level retirement benefits as 

the majority of the employees will be OPSRP members.  Tier 

1 or Tier 2 members hired by the City would retain their 

PERS membership status.

 The two parts to the basic OPSRP benefits are:

 Pension Program - 1.5 percent times years of service times final 

average salary.  Normal retirement age for general service 

members is age 65, or age 58 with 30 years of service.  

Designed to get an employee 45 percent of final average salary 

with 30 years of service.

 Individual Account Program (IAP) – Currently six percent of 

employee’s monthly salary is put into the IAP which is the 

defined contribution portion of the PERS program.

9
PDF Page 47



PERS (cont.)

 OPSRP Rates for FY 2020-21 would be:

 Employer Contribution Rate – 10.27 % of Payroll

 IAP Rate – 6% of Payroll.  Can be paid by employee or 

employer.  This analysis assumes City will pay 6% for 

consistency with the City’s DBP and PERS.  

 Total OPSRP rate for FY 2020-21 – 16.27% of payroll 

 If the City has any Tier 1 or Tier 2 PERS employees, the total 

rate would be 24.69% of payroll.  For comparison, the City’s 

DBP rate is 48.6% of base salary.

10
PDF Page 48



PERS (cont.)

 State law and PERS administrative rules control the plans 

and the terms of those plans including rates and benefits.  

The City cannot negotiate any changes to PERS plans or 

benefits with its bargaining units with the exception of 

whether the City or the employee pays the IAP contribution. 

 Rates are determined by the PERS Board based on an 

actuarial valuation performed every two years.  Rates can 

change, either up or down, based on the actuarial valuation 

and the City is obligated to pay the new rate.  OPSRP rates 

have been less volatile than Tier 1/Tier 2 rates and the City 

is independently rated (not part of the large rate pool).

 Equal-to-or-better than (ETOB) rules do not apply as those 

rules only apply to designated public safety positions.
11

PDF Page 49



12

General Fund - $70,814
L&E                             $ 2,109

Admin Services           $ 3,687

Court                          $ 2,222

Library                        $20,481

Aquatics                      $12,145

Parks                           $  9,710

Police                          $12,413

Fire                              $ 4,510

Planning                       $ 2,565

Engineering                  $    972

Other Funds - $78,004
Light & Power            $15,202

Sewer                          $  7,976

Street                           $ 9,141

Water                          $19,198

SWM                           $  6,563

Equipment                   $  5,712

Building                        $14,212

Based on budgeted FY 2018-19 salaries, the total cost to switch the current 

employees in the DCP and other employees who would qualify for PERS, is an 

additional $148,818/year.  The cost per fund and department after allocation of 

costs for the General Support Services Charge is:

COST TO SWITCH TO PERS

PDF Page 50



PROCESS

 Per PERS rules, all general service employees must go into 

PERS unless specifically excluded in a coverage agreement 

that would be negotiated with PERS.  The City needs to 

determine which general service employees would be 

included in the coverage agreement.  City cannot pick and 

choose specific employee groups.

 Staff is proposing to include:

 Future general service employees

 Current DCP Members. DCP members are proposed for PERS 

out of fairness as new employees would go into PERS.  

 Current participants in the City’s DBP are proposed to remain 

in that plan. PERS has told City staff that PERS will likely allow 

the DBP participants to be excluded from PERS. 

13
PDF Page 51



PROCESS (cont.)

 The City would need to bargain this change with IBEW, 

AFSCME, and non-sworn FGPA members, who represent the 

union employees that would be affected.  

 All 3 bargaining units would have to agree to go to PERS or no 

unit can go. Non-represented can be moved to PERS without any 

negotiations.  

 For the bargaining associations the following agreement would be 

needed:
 AFSCME and FGPA – memorandums of understanding to amend the current 

contracts as their agreements are not currently open for negotiation.

 IBEW – this contract is being negotiated and expires June 30, 2020. The change 

would need to be included in the new bargaining agreement. This agreement 

could determine the timing of the other units. 

14
PDF Page 52



PROCESS (cont.)

 While the bargaining agreement discussions are occurring, 

staff would need to negotiate a coverage agreement with 

PERS to ensure that certain staff can be excluded, i.e., DBP 

members, and included.

 The Council is the approval authority. A resolution is 

necessary for any agreement to become effective. 

 If the decision is made to put these employees in PERS, that 

decision is irrevocable.

15
PDF Page 53



GUIDANCE REQUESTED

 Staff is requesting guidance from Council.  

 Options are:

 Continue with current plan structure

 Begin process to move to PERS.  Question: Put just new 

employees into PERS or also include current DCP members? 

 This issue is being brought to Council now due to timing 

issues with the IBEW negotiations. 

16
PDF Page 54



CERTIFICATE OF RECOGNITION 
Awarded to 

Porest qrove Sister Cities Committee (}Tesitfent 
2000-2020 

In Recognition of Valuable Contributions to the Sister Cities Relations 
Formed in 1988 between the Town of Nyuzen, Japan, and City of Forest Grove 

fjfre fJOJrejt ~ C!iuj &unci£ and S~Wi ~ eonumttu j~ tllanli yau foJi tpJWt ~fiip, ckdication and 
trafua6le ~ and~ jO. fwtuvtd fuwinfJ yau j~""' a~ of, tfre S~Wi ~ eonumttu j iJu;e 1992. 

Larisa Nefedov, President 

~ttee 

Peter B. Truax, Mayor 
Forest Grove City Council 

A place where businesses and families thrive. March 16, 2020 

PDF Page 55



March 9, 2020 

http s ://www. forestgrove-or .gov I citycou n ci 1/p age/forest -grove-loses-sister-cities-advocate 

The City of Forest Grove would like to express its condolences to the family and friends of 

Sandy Garcia who passed away peacefully after a courageous battle with cancer on Saturday, 

March 7, 2020. Sandy was a board member of the Sister Cities Committee and served as 

President for the past 20 years. 

Mayor Peter Truax said, "Sandy Garcia was the face of the Sister City program for so many years 

in Forest Grove. She traveled with both the adult and youth delegations to Nyuzen, she 

participated in the hosting of both delegations from Japan, and she provided assistance in every 

aspect of the friendship with Nyuzen . I will miss her expertise, her advice and her incredible 

knowledge about Japan . Most of alt I will miss her friendship." 

Anna Ruggles, City Recorder, who is staff liaison to the sister cities program, said "Sandy's 

dedication in promoting the core values of understanding and interaction through mutual 

respect has left an ever-lasting imprint on the sister cities relations. Her passion created many 

opportunities and greater awareness for our mission. She will be truly missed by all as well as 

her friends in Nyuzen, Japan." 

The Council will be honoring Sandy Garcia for her dedication, leadership and outstanding 

contributions at the City Council Meeting on Monday, March 16, 2020, 7:00 p.m., in the 

Community Auditorium. The public is invited to attend. Funeral arrangements will be 

announced later. 

PDF Page 56



FOREST " 
GROVE OREGON 

A place where families and businesses thrive. 

CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM 

TO: City Council 

FROM: Jesse VanderZanden, City Manager 

PROJECT TEAM: Anna D. Ruggles, CMC, City Recorder 

DATE: March 16, 2020 

SUBJECT TITLE: Proclamation 

Background: 
The following proclamation is in recognition of: 

CITY RECORDER USE ONL Y: \b 
AGENDA ITEM#: ____ _ 

MEETING DATE: _0_3_1_16_1_20_2_0 __ 

FINAL ACTION: 

• National Community Development Week, April 13 - 17, 2020 

Proclamation has been signed and mailed to Washington County Office of Community 
Development, Community Development Block Grant, so the requesting agency could receive the 
proclamation in a timely manner for their recognition . 

CITY OF FOREST GROVE P.O. BOX 326 FOREST GROVE, OR 97116-0326 503-992-3200 www.forestgrove-or.gov PDF Page 57



FOREST ,, 
GROVE OREGON 

A place where families and businesses thrive. 

cp~o c £Jf :M.Jf 'I' I o :N 
National Community Development Week 

Apri/13- Apri/17, 2020 

WHEREAS, the week of April13- April 17, 2020, has been designated as National Community 
Development Week by the National Community Development Association to celebrate the Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program and the HOME Investment Partnerships (HOME) 
Program; and 

WHEREAS, the CDBG Program provides annual funding and flexibility to local communities to 
provide decent, safe and sanitary housing , a suitable living environment and economic opportunities to 
low-and-moderate-income people; 

WHEREAS, the HOME Investment Partnerships (HOME) Program provides funding to local 
communities to create decent, safe and affordable housing opportunities for low-income persons. 
Nationally, over one million units of affordable housing have been completed using HOME funds; and 

WHEREAS, over the programs' history, our community has received a total of $4,675,312 in 
CDBG funds. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FOREST GROVE DOES 
HEREBY PROCLAIM THE WEEK OF APRIL 13- APRIL 17,2020 AS 

NATIONAL COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT WEEK 
in Forest Grove, Oregon, Washington County, in support of these two valuable programs that 

have made tremendous contributions to the viability of the housing stock, infrastructure, public 
services, and economic vitality of our community. 

BE IT FURTHER PROCLAIMED, that this community urges Congress and the Administration 
to recognize the outstanding work being done locally and nationally by the Community Development 
Block Grant Program and the HOME Investment Partnerships Program by supporting increased 
funding for both rams in FY 2021. 

P. 0. BOX 326 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set 
my hand and caused the seal of the City of 
Forest Grove, Oregon , to be affixed this 161h 

day of March , 2020.2019. 

~ 
Peter B. Truax, Mayor, City of Forest Grove 

FOREST GROVE, OR 97116 503-992-3200 www.forestgrove-or.gov PDF Page 58



FOREST " 
GROVE OREGON 

A place where families and businesses thrive. 

City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
Monday, February 10, 2020 

7:00p.m., Community Auditorium 

Minutes are unofficial until approved by Council. 

1. CALLED TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL: 
Mayor Peter Truax called the regular City Council meeting to order at 7:02p.m. and 
led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

ROLL CALL: COUNCIL PRESENT: Timothy Rippe; Ronald Thompson; Mariana 
Valenzuela; Adolph "Val" Valfre, Malynda Wenzl, Council President; and Mayor Peter 
Truax. ABSENT: Elena Uhing, excused. 

STAFF PRESENT: Jesse VanderZanden, City Manager; Paul Downey, 
Administrative Services Director; Brian Pohl, Community Development Director; Dan 
Riordan, Senior Planner; Tom Gamble, Parks & Recreation Director; Michael 
Kinkade, Fire Chief (in the audience); Colleen Winters, Library Director (in the 
audience); and Beverly Maughan, Executive Assistant to the City Manager. STAFF 
ABSENT: Anna Ruggles, City Recorder, excused. 

2. CITIZEN COMMUNICATIONS: None. 

3. CONSENT AGENDA: 
Items under the Consent Agenda are considered routine and are adopted with a 
single motion, without separate discussion. Council members who wish to remove an 
item from the Consent Agenda may do so prior to the motion to approve the item(s). 
Any item(s) removed from the Consent Agenda will be discussed and acted upon 
following the approval of the remaining Consent Agenda item(s). 

A. Approve City Council Subcommittee Work Sessions (B/C Interviews) Meeting 
Minutes of January 13, 2020. 

B. Approve City Council Regular Meeting Minutes of January 13, 2020. 
C. Accept Public Arts Commission Meeting Minutes of December 19, 2019. 
D. Community Development Department Monthly Building Activity Informational 

Report for January 2020. 
E. RESOLUTION NO. 2020-19 MAKING REAPPOINTMENT/APPOINTMENTS 

TO PLANNING COMMISSION (Reappointing Dale Smith. Term Expiring 
December 31. 2023; APPOINTING JULIE DANKO, TERM EXPIRING 
DECEMBER 31, 2023, AND APPOINTING JOEL REDWINE, TERM 
EXPIRING DECEMBER 31, 2021). 

F. RESOLUTION NO. 2020-20 MAKING REAPPOINTMENT TO 

CITY OF FOREST GROVE P. 0 . BOX 326 FOREST GROVE, OR 97116 503-992-3200 www.forestgrove-or.gov PDF Page 59



City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
February 10, 2020 

Community Auditorium 
Page 2 of7 

SUSTAINABILITY COMMISSION (Reappointing Robin Lindsley. Term 
Expiring December 31. 2023). 

G. RESOLUTION NO. 2020-21 MAKING NEW APPOINTMENT TO COMMITTEE 
FOR COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT (APPOINTING LOWELL GREATHOUSE, 
TERM EXPIRING JANUARY 31, 2024). 

H. RESOLUTION NO. 2020-22 MAKING NEW APPOINTMENT TO LIBRARY 
COMMISSION (APPOINTING SARAH (MORGAN) KNAPP, TERM EXPIRING 
DECEMBER 31 I 2023). 

MOTION: Councilor Valfre moved, seconded by Councilor Wenzl, to approve 
the Consent Agenda as presented. ABSENT: Councilor Uhing. MOTION 
CARRIED 6-0 by voice vote. 

4. ADDITIONS/DELETIONS: None. 

5. PRESENTATIONS: 

5. A. Downtown Parking Studv (Parking Use and Turnover Results) 
Riordan and Pohl presented a PowerPoint presentation overview pertaining to the 
Downtown Parking Study Results, noting study focused on supply, demand and use of 
on-street parking spaces and spaces within city-owned parking lots and was conducted 
for the purpose of gaining a better understanding of parking operations within downtown 
areas, noting the study results were present to project stakeholders group for review and 
discussion on November 14, 2019. Riordan referenced a chart showing a total of 777 
downtown public parking spaces, noting the study area included four subareas, 48 block 
faces and seven public parking lots. Riordan reported the subareas were primarily studied 
on Saturday, August 17 and Thursday, August 22, 2019, noting these study days were 
selected to provide a picture of parking demand during a typical weekday and busy 
weekend which featured an event downtown (Forest Grove Uncorked Festival) and while 
Pacific University was hosting an event. Riordan noted another study day while Pacific 
University is in session is being planned. In addition, Riordan referenced charts showing 
parking use and key observations during peak hours, noting the study suggests there is 
generally adequate parking supply within downtown areas to support activities; however, 
localized congestion is often apparent. In conclusion of the above-noted presentation, 
Riordan and Pohl addressed various Council inquiries and concerns pertaining to 
improving ADA off-street parking and identifying locations of ADA parking, improving 
designating vendor parking, issuing resident parking permits and Pacific University and 
business-shared parking usage agreements, noting the next step results point to a 
number of possible parking management measures, such as: 

• Policy to guide longer-term parking demand toward the parking lots and on-street 
parking toward the edges of the downtown area. 

• Such a policy could address parking needs for downtown employees, residents and 
parking needs during events. It was observed that vendors during the Saturday 
event were using prime on-street parking spaces. 

PDF Page 60



City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
February 10, 2020 

Community Auditorium 
Page 3 of7 

• Improve wayfinding signage to guide short- and long-term parking demand. 
• Consider allowing longer timed on-street parking on weekend days. 
• Policy for maximizing use of City-owned parking lots. Such a policy could include 

establishing time limits for some or all spaces or a permit system reserving some 
spaces for long-term needs, such as downtown employees and residents. 

6. RESOLUTION NO. 2020-23 ACCEPTING PARKS AND RECREATION SCHEMATIC 
DESIGN STUDY FOR A. T. SMITH PARK, STITES PARK. NORTH LINCOLN PARK 
AND THE AQUATIC CENTER WATER SPACE AND FACILITY NEEDS STUDY 

Staff Report: 
Gamble presented the above-proposed resolution requesting to accept the Parks and 
Recreation Schematic Design Study for A. T. Smith Park, Stites Natural Park, North 
Lincoln Park and Aquatic Center Water Space Concept Design and Facility Needs 
Study (Exhibit A), noting the above-noted facilities were identified in the adopted 2016 
Parks, Recreation and Open Space Master Plan. Additionally, the scope of work was 
expanded to include the Eastside Park, which also identified in the Master Plan; 
however, this project is still being explored and is not part of this study. Gamble 
introduced PLACE consultants, who were present and reported on the community 
engagement and design processes for all facilities, noting public input was the most 
critical element throughout the process in collecting data, comments and suggestions 
for all facilities and planning efforts. Gamble noted numerous public input 
engagement opportunities and stakeholders input sessions were held and over 500 
comments and suggestions were received. In addition, Gamble introduced Paul 
Waterstreet, Parks and Recreation Commission (P&R) Chair, and Susan Taylor, P&R 
member, who were present in the audience, noting the P&R at its meeting on October 
16, 2019, unanimously accepted the final schematic designs and recommended 
forwarding the findings for Council consideration . In conclusion of the above-noted 
staff report, Gamble advised staff is recommending Council approve the proposed 
resolution , as outlined in Exhibit A, noting the schematic designs are intended to be 
long-term planning documents and do not commit the City to funding or development 
of any of the facilities at this time. 

Before proceeding with Council discussion, Mayor Truax asked for a motion to adopt 
Resolution No. 2020-23. 

VanderZanden read Resolution No. 2020-23 by title. 

MOTION: Councilor Wenzl moved, seconded by Councilor Rippe, to adopt 
Resolution No. 2020-23 Accepting Parks and Recreation Schematic Design 
Study for A.T. Smith Park, Stites Park, North Lincoln Park and the Aquatic 
Center Water Space and Facility Needs Study. 

Council Discussion: 

PDF Page 61



City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
February 10, 2020 

Community Auditorium 
Page 4 of7 

In response to Rippe's inquiry pertaining to A. T. Smith Park, No. 9, Territorial Road, 
Gamble and consultant advised the road was identified as an old historic road and will 
remain on the site for future use. 

In response to Valenzuela's inquiry pertaining to Adelante Mujeres role in Stites 
Park's community garden, Gamble advised the City has a memorandum of 
understanding agreement and maintains an ongoing relationship with the Forest 
Grove Community Garden Organization and Adelante Mujeres, noting the designs are 
intended to be long-term planning documents and do not commit the City to funding or 
development of any of the facilities at this time. 

In response to Wenzl 's inquiry pertaining to Eastside Park timeline, Gamble advised 
staff is currently exploring the feasibility and has identified key stakeholders, noting 
the process could take several months. 

Mayor Truax commended the consultants and especially staff and P&R members for 
all their outstanding work and community engagement efforts. 

Hearing no further concerns from the Council, Mayor Truax asked for a roll call vote 
on the above motion. 

ROLL CALL VOTE: AYES: Councilors Rippe, Thompson, Valenzuela, Valfre 
Wenzl, and Mayor Truax. NOES: None. ABSENT: Councilor Uhing. MOTION 
CARRIED 6-0. 

7. CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS: 
Rippe reported the Chamber requested a continuation of the discussion with the City 
regarding the Economic Development Commission's (EDC) roles and responsibilities, 
noting a meeting has been held with the Chamber. Rippe reported he attended the 
Chamber Board of Directors' Meeting, noting the Board discussed forming its own 
Business Development Committee. Rippe reported attending EDC's meeting , noting 
he shared Council's concerns and desire that EDC be reduced to nine members 
sometime in the future. In addition, EDC is refining its Strategic Plan step-by-step. 
Rippe briefed Council and asked that a letter be sent to State Representatives on 
behalf of the Council in support of a bill that would delegate speed setting authority to 
cities and counties for highways and locally-owned roads, to which Council 
collectively concurred that Mayor Truax would prepare the advocacy letter on behalf 
of the Council. In addition, Rippe reported attending other community-related events 
and meetings and reported on upcoming meetings he was planning to attend . 

Thompson reported Community Forestry Commission (CFC) is commemorating 
National Arbor Day with an Annual Tree Planting Celebration on Tuesday, April 24, 
2020, 10:00 a.m. at Thatcher Park. Mayor Truax reported the State Department of 
Forestry congratulated the City for its 30-Year Anniversary as a Tree City USA (2019), 

PDF Page 62



City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
February 10, 2020 

Community Auditorium 
Page 5 of 7 

noting the Oregon Department of Forestry will present a plaque to the City at a later 
date. In addition, Thompson reported on upcoming meetings he was planning to 
attend. 

Uhing was absent. 

Valenzuela reported attending Public Arts Commission's (PAC) retreat, noting PAC is 
developing its Strategic Plan, working on various events, changing Meet-The-Artist 
event to two times a year, and is working on an app to raise awareness. Valenzuela 
added PAC will be consulting with Council on professional development opportunities. 
In addition, Valenzuela reported other community-related events and meetings and 
reported on upcoming meetings she was planning to attend . 

Valfre reported the next Library Commission (LC) meeting will be held on Wednesday, 
February 12 instead of Tuesday, February 11, 2020, noting LC is adjusting its 
schedule to better align with ongoing activities. Valfre reported he plans to attend the 
Boards & Commissions Annual Recognition Dinner on February 13, 2020; however, 
he will be leaving early due to meeting conflict later that evening. In addition, Valfre 
reported on other community-related matters of interest and events he will be 
attending and reported on upcoming meetings he was planning to attend . 

Wenzl reported Committee for Community Involvement will be discussing the Annual 
Town Meeting at its next meeting. Wenzl reported she was unable to attend the 
Forest Grove Rural Fire Protection District meeting, noting she should be able to 
attend the March meeting. Wenzl reported the Invitation to Bid for Anna and Abby's 
Yard at Rogers Park was issued, noting the community partnerships and stakeholders 
has been outstanding. In addition, Wenzl reported on upcoming meetings she was 
planning to attend. 

8. City Manager's Report: 
VanderZanden reported on upcoming meetings and events as noted in the Council 
calendar. VanderZanden reported the City advertised for proposals for Watershed 
Management and received one proposal from Trout Mountain Forestry, and the City is 
in the process of negotiating a new agreement for services, noting Trout Mountain is 
the City's current contractor. In addition, VanderZanden reported on various upcoming 
meetings and updates on department-related activities and projects. 

9. MAYOR'S REPORT: 
Mayor Truax announced dates of various upcoming activities, events and meetings as 
noted in the Council Calendar. Mayor Truax reported on various legislative-related 
matters and Metro's proposed measure to fund housing services. In addition, Mayor 
Truax reported on various local, regional, Metro, and Washington County-related 
matters of interest and meetings he attended, upcoming community-related events, 
and upcoming meetings and events he was planning to attend. 

PDF Page 63



City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
February 1 0, 2020 

Community Auditorium 
Page 6 of 7 

Additional Funding Councilor Travel Expenditures: 
Mayor Truax requested that Council consider a proposed resolution approving 
additional funding to allow Councilor Rippe to attend the National League of Cities 
(NLC) Conference 2020 in Washington , D. C., which is held in March, noting Rippe 
was recently appointed to the NLC's Transportation and Infrastructure Services 
federal advocacy committee. Mayor Truax provided insight into the types of training 
that is regularly funded for travel throughout the year, noting the request is 
unexpected and the appointment was unplanned. In conclusion , Mayor Truax asked 
for Council consensus to bring back a proposed resolution for $4,000 at the next 
regular Council meeting on February 24, 2020; otherwise, the Council FY2019-20 
training and travel budget will be over expended . 

Wenzl voiced support of the appointment; however, she had reservations of funding 
additional travel when the current travel budget has been expended and the request 
not vetted through the budget process, noting additional travel expenditures have 
been approved already in FY2019-20 budget. In response to Wenzl's inquiry if NLC 
provides any funding , Mayor Truax indicated NLC does not fund travel except 
perhaps for its own board of directors. 

In response to Wenzl 's inquiry pertaining to the purpose of Rippe's travel in March, 
Rippe indicated there are two key visits occurring during Capitol Hill Advocacy Day 
with congressional members, which are arranged by the League of Oregon Cities and 
the Transportation and Infrastructure Services federal advocacy committee. Rippe 
explained he did not know he was going to be appointed to the committee until 
January; otherwise, he would have budgeted his travel more carefully. Rippe added 
he has a meeting with Ride Connection so he can get a better idea of their 
transportation concept. In addition, Rippe referenced Council 's Goal 3, which is to 
advocate at the state and national level, noting he is simply asking if staff can look if 
other funding is available. 

Valfre voiced support of asking staff to look if other funding is available, noting it is 
very important that Rippe attend in March as it is an opportunity for the City to have a 
voice as well as the state. In addition , Valfre suggested reviewing and increasing the 
Council 's training budget next fiscal year. 

Thompson suggested using monies from the Watershed Fund to pay for travel 
expenditures, noting in his opinion the two are connected. 

In response to various inquiries, VanderZanden advised an additional expenditure of 
$4,000 would exceed Councilor Travel Expenditures budgeted for FY2019-20, noting 
the request would require a resolution transferring an appropriation from General 
Fund Contingency for FY2019-20. Downey concurred and advised General Fund 
Contingency is for the purpose of unplanned events. 

PDF Page 64



City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
February 10, 2020 

Community Auditorium 
Page 7 of7 

Hearing no further discussion from the Council, Mayor Truax asked staff to bring back 
a proposed resolution for $4,000 from General Fund Contingency at the next regular 
Council meeting on February 24, 2020, for Council consideration. 

10. ADJOURNMENT: 
Mayor Truax adjourned the regular Council meeting at 8:45 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Anna D. Ruggles, CMC, City Recorder 

PDF Page 65



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

PDF Page 66



FOREST O 
GROVE OREGON 

A place where families and businesses thrive. 

City Council Work Session Minutes 
Council & Management Goal-Setting Retreat 

Saturday, February 15, 2020 
Light and Power Conference Room 

Minutes are unofficial until approved by Council. 

1. CALLED TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL: 
Mayor Peter Truax called the City Council Goal-Setting Retreat to order at 8:28a.m. 

2. ROLL CALL: COUNCIL PRESENT: Timothy Rippe; Elena Uhing; Mariana 
Valenzuela; Adolph "Val" Valfre; Malynda Wenzl, Council President (dismissed at 
2:15 pm); and Mayor Peter Truax. COUNCIL VACANCY: 1. 

Mayor Truax announced the unexpected death of Councilor Ronald Thompson , 
noting Thompson died in the morning hours of Wednesday, February 12, 2020. 
Thompson was elected as a City Councilor in 2002 and was re-elected in 2006, 
2010, 2014 and 2018. 

STAFF PRESENT: Jesse VanderZanden, City Manager; Paul Downey, 
Administrative Services Director; Tom Gamble, Parks and Recreation Director; Keith 
Hormann, Light and Power Director; Michael Kinkade, Fire Chief; Bryan Pohl , 
Community Development Director; Henry Reimann, Interim Police Chief; Gregory 
Robertson, Public Works Director; Colleen Winters , Library Director (dismissed at 
9:50am and returned 11:02 am); Jeff King , Economic Development Manager; and 
Anna Ruggles, City Recorder. 

3. WELCOME AND AGENDA OVERVIEW: 
VanderZanden introduced Sara Wilson , SSW Consulting , who facilitated the Council 
and Management Team Retreat, noting to prepare for the retreat, Wilson spoke with 
each Councilor and all the Directors, which conversations formed the agenda, 
structure and expected outcomes of the Retreat with the intent of making the Retreat 
as productive and meaningful as possible. VanderZanden referenced the following 
attachments: 

• Retreat Agenda 
• City Council Goals and Objectives (updated with status) 
• Urban Renewal Agency Goals and Objectives (updated with status) 
• Top 2019 Accomplishments 
• 2020 Community Profile Snapshot (to aid in VisionNalues discussion) 
• 2019 Council Team Agreement 

Agenda Overview: 

CITY OF FOREST GROVE P. 0. BOX 326 FOREST GROVE, OR 97116 503-992-3200 www.forestgrove-or.gov PDF Page 67



City Council & Management Goal-Setting Retreat Minutes 
February 15, 2020 

Light and Power Conference Room 
Page 2 of 2 

Wilson facilitated the following roundtable group exercises: 

9:30 AM -Context Review 
Debrief the discussion from the City Council Work Session 

9:45AM -Idea Mapping (9:59am to 11 :02am) 
- Working in small groups, map goals, objectives, initiatives during a 

brainstorming exercise 
10:30 AM - Break 
10:40 AM- Small Group Idea Mapping Presentations 
11:10 AM- Goal Refinement 
12:00 PM- Lunch (12:07pm to 12:35pm) 
12:30 PM- Finalize Goals and Priorities (12:35pm to 12:45pm) 
1:30PM- Community Vision Discussion (12:45pm to 2:35pm) 

- Vision Process Overview 
Forest Grove Community Profile 
Community Engagement Goals 
Stakeholder Map 

2:30PM- Wrap-up and Reflection (2:40pm) 
- Team Commitment 

In conclusion the above-noted roundtable group exercises, VanderZanden advised 
Sara Wilson, SSW Consulting, will prepare a compilation of results for the Council 
Goals and Objectives Refinement Work Session scheduled on March 16, 2020. 

Council took no formal action nor made any formal decisions during the Council 
Retreat. 

4. ADJOURNMENT: 
Hearing no further discussion from the Council, Mayor Truax adjourned the Council 
Retreat at 2:53p.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Anna D. Ruggles, CMC, City Recorder 

PDF Page 68



FOREST O 
GROVE OREGON 

A place where f amilies and businesses thrive. 

Council Work Session Minutes 
Staff Succession Planning Update 

Monday, February 24, 2020 
5:30 p.m., Community Auditorium 

Minutes are unofficial until approved by Council. 

1. ROLL CALL: 
Mayor Peter Truax called the Work Session to order at 5:37p.m. 

ROLL CALL: COUNCIL PRESENT: Timothy Rippe; Elena Uhing; Mariana Valenzuela ; 
Adolph "Val" Valfre ; Malynda Wenzl, Council President; and Mayor Peter Truax. 
COUNCIL VACANCY: 1 

STAFF PRESENT: Jesse VanderZanden, City Manager; Paul Downey, Administrative 
Services Director; Brenda Camilli, Human Resources Manager; Michael Kinkade, Fire 
Chief (in the audience); Colleen Winters, Library Director (in the audience) ; and Anna 
Ruggles , City Recorder. 

2. WORK SESSION: STAFF SUCCESSION PLANNING UPDATE 
Camilli , Downey and VanderZanden facilitated the above-noted Council work session, 
noting the purpose of the work session was to address Council's Objective 2.12, Develop 
Staff Succession Plan, identified in FY2019-20, and provide recommendations for next 
steps and seek Council direction. Camilli and Downey presented a PowerPoint 
presentation overview of the facets to succession planning as noted below: 

• Review organizational chart and promotional ladders 
• Evaluate employee retention and factors affecting tenure 
• Identify employees' career goals and plan/budget for training 
• Identify opportunities for cross-training and job shadowing 

Camilli and Downey recapped the following information: 
• City has relatively flat position hierarchy, which impacts promotion opportunities. 
• City has enjoyed long employment tenures and high retention, one factor has been 

Defined Benefit Plan. 
• 46 employees will be 55+ years old (potentially eligible to retire in 2020); 72 within 

the next five years . There are 167 FTE's in the City. 
• City management supports promoting from within: 40 positions out of approximately 

95 vacancies in the past 5 years (42%) were filled internally. 
In addition, Camilli and Downey provided background information pertaining to 
Recruitment and Retention and Employee Survey Results, noting: 1) Retirement plan 
was named as a reason employees may consider leaving City's employment and one 
thing that would make the City a better place to work (8 comments), and 2) employees 
were less positive than local government benchmarks on satisfaction with total benefits 
package (retirement, health insurance) (-5 gap). Next, Camilli and Downey reported in 

CITY OF FOREST GROVE P. 0. BOX 326 FOREST GROVE, OR 97116 503-992·3200 www.forestgrove-or.gov PDF Page 69



Council Work Session Minutes 
Staff Succession Planning Update 

February 24, 2020 
Community Auditorium 

Page 2 of 3 

response to the above results, the City is reviewing its three retirement plans, each has 
different eligibility requirements and benefit structures: 1) Defined Benefit Plan, 2) 
Defined Contribution Plan and 3) PERS. Camilli and Downey reported staff is 
recommending Council consider having staff complete a detailed analysis on the 
potential of moving employees who are currently on the Defined Contribution Plan and all 
new qualifying General Service employees to the Public Employees Retirement System 
(PERS) (no impact to employees on Defined Benefit Plan), noting the timing is good to 
consider the change with IBEW's contract currently open for bargaining. Camilli noted the 
current eligibility for City employees includes: 

• All full-time AFSCME and non-represented employees hired on or after July 1, 
2011 . 

• All full-time non-sworn members of the FGPA hired on or after July 1, 2012. 
• All part-time AFSCME and non-represented employees regularly scheduled to work 

at least twenty (20) hours per week as of July 1, 2014. 
• All part-time FGPA employees regularly scheduled to work at least twenty (20) 

hours per week hired as of July 1, 2016. 
In conclusion of the above-noted report, Camilli and Downey reported in response to 
internal recruitment and retention analysis, the City is: 

• Reviewing and revising current format for employee goal-setting and career goals. 
• Preparing managers and supervisors for implementation and to identify 

opportunities to prepare for future vacancies. 
• Evaluating opportunities for internal promotions when positions vacate . 
• Identifying opportunities for cross-training and job shadowing . 

Council Discussion: 
Mayor Truax opened the floor and roundtable discussion ensued as the Council had an 
opportunity to review the Staff Succession Plan recommendations. Camilli, Downey and 
VanderZanden addressed various Council inquiries and scenarios pertaining to how to 
better manage effectively in an employee's extended absence and the importance of 
cross-training and job shadowing for unique and key positions with specialized job skills 
so other employees have a chance to observe various jobs in action and so employees 
can step-in for a temporary period of time as well as having step-by-step instructions of 
the general duties and responsibilities, to which staff concurred . In addition, Camilli, 
Downey and VanderZanden addressed various Council inquiries pertaining to whether 
staff should proceed with completing a detailed cost analysis on the potential of moving 
employees who are currently on the Defined Contribution Plan and all new qualifying 
General Service employees to the PERS, to which Council collectively concurred . In 
conclusion of the above-noted discussion, VanderZanden advised staff will conduct the 
analysis and report back to Council at a later date. 

Council took no formal action nor made any formal decisions during the work session. 

PDF Page 70



3. ADJOURNMENT 

Council Work Session Minutes 
Staff Succession Planning Update 

February 24, 2020 
Community Auditorium 

Page 3 of 3 

Mayor Truax adjourned the Council work session at 6:20p.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Anna D. Ruggles, CMC, City Recorder 

PDF Page 71



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

PDF Page 72



A place where families and businesses thrive. 

City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
Monday, February 24, 2020 

7:00 p.m., Community Auditorium 

Minutes are unofficial until approved by Council. 

1. CALLED TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL: 
Mayor Peter Truax called the regular City Council meeting to order at 7:14p.m. and 
led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

ROLL CALL: COUNCIL PRESENT: Timothy Rippe; Elena Uhing; Mariana 
Valenzuela; Adolph "Val" Valfre; Malynda Wenzl , Council President; and Mayor Peter 
Truax. COUNCIL VACANCY: 1 (Death of Councilor Ronald C. Thompson on 
February 12, 2020). 

MOMENT OF SILENCE: 
Mayor Truax called for a moment of silence honoring Councilor Ronald C. Thompson 
who died unexpectedly at home on Wednesday, February 12, 2020. Thompson was 
elected as a City Councilor in 2002 and was re-elected in 2006, 2010, 2014 and 2018. 
Thompson currently served as Council Liaison to the Community Forestry 
Commission. He also served on Ride Connection Board of Directors and served as 
liaison to the Forest Grove Senior and Community Center Board of 
Directors. Thompson's Celebration of Life Memorial Service was held Sunday, 
February 23, 2020, 2:00p.m. at the Crossing Fellowship Church , Forest Grove. 

STAFF PRESENT: Jesse VanderZanden , City Manager; Ashley Driscoll , City 
Attorney; Paul Downey, Administrative Services Director; Michael Hall, Police 
Captain; Bryan Pohl , Community Development Director; Gregory Robertson, Public 
Works Director; and Anna Ruggles , City Recorder. 

2. CITIZEN COMMUNICATIONS: None. 

3. CONSENT AGENDA: 
Items under the Consent Agenda are considered routine and are adopted with a 
single motion, without separate discussion. Council members who wish to remove an 
item from the Consent Agenda may do so prior to the motion to approve the item(s). 
Any item(s) removed from the Consent Agenda will be discussed and acted upon 
following the approval of the remaining Consent Agenda item(s). 

A. Approve City Council Work Session (Police Station Update) Meeting Minutes of 
January 13, 2020. 

B. Approve City Council Work Session (Washington County Fire Task Force 

CITY OF FOREST GROVE P. 0 . BOX326 FOREST GROVE, OR 97116 503·992·3200 www.forestgrove-or.gov PDF Page 73



City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
February 24, 2020 

Community Auditorium 
Page 2 of 10 

Recommendations) Meeting Minutes of January 13, 2020. 
C. Approve City Council Work Session (B/C Reappointments/New B/C 

Appointment's) Meeting Minutes of January 27, 2020. 
D. Approve City Council Regular Meeting Minutes of January 27, 2020. 
E. Approve City Council Executive Session (Exempt Records) Meeting Minutes of 

January 27, 2020. 
F. Accept Historic Landmarks Board Meeting Minutes of December 17, 2019. 
G. Accept Library Commission Meeting Minutes of January 17, 2020. 
H. Accept Parks and Recreation Commission Meeting Minutes of January 15, 

2020. 
I. Accept Public Safety Advisory Commission Meeting Minutes of December 4, 

2019. 
J. Accept Sustainability Commission Meeting Minutes of December 12, 2019. 
K. Endorse New Liquor License Application (Off-Premises Sales) for 7 Star 

Convenience Store #2, 3034 Pacific Avenue, Suite B 
L. Endorse Liquor License Renewal Applications for Year 2020: 
1) A-Framer's Touch, 1920 21st Avenue, Limited On-Premises Sales/Off-Premises 

Sales 
2) Bi-Mart, 3225 Pacific Avenue, Off-Premises Sales 
3) Bites Restaurant, 2014 Main Street, Full On-Premises Sales 
4) Blackdog Bar & Grill, 2835 19th Avenue, #900, Full On-Premises Sales 
5) Bon Appetit @ Pacific University, 2043 College Way, Limited On-Premises 

Sales 
6) Boxer's Pub N Grub, 1919 Pacific Avenue, Full On-Premises Sales 
7) Buffet Dynasty, 2834 E Pacific Avenue, Limited On-Premises Sales 
8) Circle Inn, 3007 Pacific Avenue, Full On-Premises Sales 
9) Coaster's Deli & Pub, 1918 Main Street, Full On-Premises Sales/Off-Premises 

Sales 
1 O)Cornerstone Pub & Grill , 2307 Pacific Avenue, Off-Premises Sales/Limited On-

Premises Sales 
11)Eiks Lodge #2440, 2810 Pacific Avenue, F-CLU Full-On Premises Sales 
12)FG Sushi , 1905 Birch Street, Limited On-Premises Sales 
13)Forest Grove Liquor Store, 3130 Pacific Avenue, Off-Premises Sales 
14)Forest Grove Senior and Community Center, 2037 Douglas Street, Limited On-

Premises Sales 
15)Godfather's Pizza/Players Pub, 2834 Pacific Avenue, Full On-Premises Sales 
16) Hello Market, 1917 19th Avenue, Off-Premises Sales 
17)Jade Green Palace, 3018 Pacific Avenue, Full On-Premises Sales 
18) La Sierra Cantina & Mexican Restaurant, 2331 Pacific Avenue, Full On-

Premises Sales 
19)Mama Jiah's Market, 2248 Main Street, Off-Premises Sales 
20)Mandarin China Restaurant, 2338 Pacific Avenue, Limited On-Premises Sales 
21)Mini Mart 2705 Pacific Avenue, Off-Premises Sales 

PDF Page 74



City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
February 24, 2020 

Community Auditorium 
Page 3 of 10 

22)Pac Thai , 1923 Pacific Avenue, Limited On-Premises Sales 
23)Piaid Pantry #20, 2436 19th Avenue, Off-Premises Sales 
24)Piaid Pantry #99, 2901 Thatcher Avenue, Off-Premises Sales 
25)Prime Time Sports Bar & Restaurant, 4450 Pacific Avenue, Full On-Premises 

Sales 
26)Rainbow Lanes, 2748 19th Place, Full On-Premises Sales 
27)Ridgewalker Brewing Event Center, 1822 21st Avenue, Full On-Premises Sales 
28)Ridgewalker Brewing, 1921 21st Avenue, Brewery/Full On-Premises Sales 
29)Safeway Store #406, 2836 Pacific Avenue, Off-Premises Sales 
30)SAWA, 2036 Main Street, Suite B, Full On-Premises Sales 
31)Shriji Food Mart I FG Arco, 2710 19th Avenue, Off-Premises Sales 
32)Smoke 4 Less, 3010 A-C Pacific Avenue, Off-Premises Sales 
33)Super Mercado La Montana, 1905 Mt View Lane, Suite 100, Off-Premises 

Sales 
34)The Masonic Grand Lodge of Oregon, 2300 Masonic Way, Full On-Premises 

Sales 
35)Urban Decanter, 2030 Main Street, Suite B, Full On-Premises Sales/Off

Premises Sales 
36)US Market 399, 3712 Pacific Avenue, Suite A , Off-Premises Sales 
37)Waltz Brewing, 1900 A Street, Brewery- Public House 

MOTION: Councilor Rippe moved, seconded by Councilor Wenzl, to approve 
the Consent Agenda as presented. COUNCIL VACANCY: 1. MOTION CARRIED 
6-0 by voice vote. 

4. ADDITIONS/DELETIONS: None. 

5. PRESENTATIONS: 

5. A. Annual Financial Audits for City and Urban Renewal Agency (URA) for Year Ending 
June 30.2019 
Downey introduced Brad Bingenheimer, City Auditor, who outlined the audit process 
and Financial Audit Report for period ending June 30, 2019, noting he is pleased to 
report no difficulties were encountered while performing and completing the City's 
audit. Bingenheimer gave an overview of the Financial Statements and highlighted the 
City's financial activities and financial position as noted below: 

• Total assets of the City exceeded its liabilities by $113.7 million at June 30, 
2019. Of this amount, $8.2 million is reported as unrestricted net position which 
may be used to meet the City's obligations. 

• During the year, the City's net position decreased by $3.83 million in 
governmental activities and increased by $1.78 million in business-type 
activities for a total decrease of $2.05 million. 

• The General Fund reported an ending fund balance at June 30, 2019, of 

PDF Page 75



City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
February 24, 2020 

Community Auditorium 
Page 4 of 10 

$7,666,833 which is a decrease of $6,925 from the prior fiscal year. Ending 
fund balance at June 30, 2019, was 41.4% of the General Fund expenditures 
for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019. 

Next, Bingenheimer outlined the Urban Renewal Agency (URA) audit process and 
Financial Audit Report for period ending June 30, 2019, noting he is pleased to report 
no difficulties were encountered while performing and completing the URA's audit. 
Bingenheimer gave an overview of the Financial Statements and highlighted the 
URA's financial activities and financial position as noted below: 

• The Total Assets of the Agency were $766,268 and the Net Position was 
$(1 ,296,293) at June 30, 2019, which was the end of the URA's fifth fiscal year. 

• Overall, expenditures were $90,897 and overall revenue was $246,685. The 
primary revenue for FY 2018-19 was property tax revenue and the largest 
individual expenditure for 2018-19 was $41,252 in interest expense paid to the 
City for debt owed to the City. 

• The URA's General Fund ended the year with a fund balance of $346,190 
which is an increase of $155,728. There were no changes to the budget during 
the year and all expenditures were within appropriations. 

5. B. Tourism Branding 
Court Carrier, City's Tourism Consultant, presented a PowerPoint presentation 
overview pertaining to the City's tourism plan, noting it has been 10 years since the 
City reviewed its current tourism destination brand, "Forest Grove Where Oregon 
pinot was born". Carrier reported the Tourism Advisory Committee (TAC) has been 
meeting and has made progress creating a new website and social media platforms. 
Carrier introduced Holly MacFee, Lookout & Company, who presented a PowerPoint 
presentation overview, noting her company will be working to develop a new City 
tourism destination brand and activation plan. In conclusion of the above-noted 
presentation, the consultants addressed various Council comments pertaining to 
Forest Grove's uniqueness, diverse population, and local attractions and nearby 
attractions as well as the overall community assets. 

6. PUBLIC HEARING AND ORDER NO. 2020-02 REMANDING TO THE PLANNING 
COMMISSION FOR FURTHER CONSIDERATION RE-DESIGNATION OF TWO 
CITY-OWNED PARCELS, LOCATED AT 2102 PACIFIC AVENUE AND 1919 ASH 
STREET, FROM PUBLIC/INSTITUTIONAL TO TOWN CENTER TRANSITION: FILE 
NO. 311-19-000028-PLNG 

Staff Report: 
Riordan presented the above-proposed Order, noting the Order is requesting to 
remand to the Planning Commission the Comprehensive Plan Map and Zoning Map 
Amendments to re-designate and rezone two city-owned parcels, located at 2102 
Pacific Avenue and 1919 Ash Street, from Public/Institutional to Town Center 
Transition, for the purpose of the new proposed police station (Attachment A); File No. 

PDF Page 76



City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
February 24, 2020 

Community Auditorium 
Page 5 of 10 

311-19-000028-PLNG, Applicants: City of Forest Grove and Forest Grove Rural Fire 
Protection District. Riordan reported the Planning Commission held its hearing on the 
proposal on December 16, 2019, and the Planning Commission recommended the 
City pursue a text amendment to the Development Code to address off-street parking 
requirements for emergency vehicles in the Public/Institutional zone rather than re
designate the subject property to Town Center Transition (Planning Commission 
Decision No. 2019-15). Riordan advised as a result of the Planning Commission's 
decision, staff researched the proposal of a text amendment and determined that 
because Forest Grove is located within the Metro Boundary, the City must adhere to 
Metro Regional Transportation Functional Plan (RTFP). Title 4 of the RTFP addresses 
regional parking management, criteria for establishing variances from minimum and 
maximum parking ratios and provides authority to adopt parking policies, 
management plans and regulations for Town Centers. Riordan explained the City has 
adopted a policy to exempt non-residential uses on property zoned Town Center Core 
or Town Center Transition; however, the City has not adopted a policy for non
residential uses on property zoned Public/Institutional in the Town Center. Riordan 
noted the above-noted staff findings were not available at the Planning Commission 
hearing on December 16, 2019. In conclusion of the above-noted staff report, Riordan 
advised staff is recommending Council consider opening and closing the hearing this 
evening, which was postponed on January 27, 2020, and approve the proposed 
Order, as outlined in Exhibit A, noting the Order remands the Planning Commission to 
consider new information and staff findings. 

Before proceeding with opening/closing the Public Hearing and Council discussion, 
Mayor Truax asked for a motion to adopt Order No. 2020-02. 

VanderZanden read Order No. 2020-02 by title. 

MOTION: Councilor Uhing moved, seconded by Councilor Valfre, to approve 
Order No. 2020-02 Remanding to the Planning Commission for Further 
Consideration Re-Designation of Two City-Owned Parcels, Located at 2102 
Pacific Avenue and 1919 Ash Street, from Public/Institutional to Town Center 
Transition; File No. 311-19-000028-PING. 

Public Hearing Opened/Closed: 
Mayor Truax opened the Public Hearing, which was postponed from the Council 
meeting of January 27, 2020, and closed the hearing on February 24, 2020. 

Council Discussion: 
Hearing no concerns from the Council, Mayor Truax asked for a roll call vote on the 
motion. 

ROLL CALL VOTE: AYES: Councilors Rippe, Uhing, Valenzuela, Valfre, Wenzl, 

PDF Page 77



City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
February 24, 2020 

Community Auditorium 
Page 6 of 10 

and Mayor Truax. NOES: None. COUNCIL VACANCY: 1. MOTION CARRIED 6-0 
by voice vote. 

7. RESOLUTION NO. 2020-24 TRANSFERRING APPROPRIATIONS WITHIN THE 
GENERAL FUND FOR CITY COUNCILOR TRAVEL EXPENDITURES FOR THE 
FISCAL YEAR 2019-20 

Staff Report: 
Downey presented the above-noted resolution, noting the proposed resolution is to 
consider authorizing to transfer $4,000 from the General Fund Contingency for City 
Councilor Travel Expenditures for the Fiscal Year 2019-2020. Downey reported the 
Council agreed to add an additional attendee to attend the National League of Cities 
(NLC) Conference 2020 in Washington , D. C., which is held in March, noting Rippe 
was recently appointed to the NLC committee. In conclusion of the above-noted staff 
report, Downey advised staff is recommending Council consider the proposed 
resolution as outlined in Exhibit A; otherwise, there is insufficient funding in FY2019-
2020 adopted Legislative Conferences and Training budget. 

Before proceeding with Council discussion, Mayor Truax asked for a motion to adopt 
Resolution No. 2020-24. 

VanderZanden read Resolution No. 2024-24 by title. 

MOTION: Councilor Valfre moved, seconded by Councilor Uhing, to adopt 
Resolution No. 2020-24 Transferring Appropriations within the General Fund for 
City Councilor Travel Expenditures for the Fiscal Year 2019-20. 

Council Discussion: 
Uhing voiced concerns of using contingency to fund emergency travel expenditures in 
between budget cycles. Uhing added though she is supportive, she would like to 
propose that before the next budget cycle each councilor provide an explanation, 
justification of types of travel that were necessary, and end results to the city as a 
whole. In addition, Uhing noted there should also be a consistent message that is 
delivered and collectively agreed upon by Council not individually. 

Wenzl voiced concerns of using contingency to fund additional travel when the current 
travel budget has been expended, noting she would prefer waiting until the next 
budget cycle . Wenzl added though she is supportive and appreciates the work 
towards the city having a voice, the request does not outweigh the importance of 
budgetary responsibility. In addition, Wenzl questioned why NLC could not at least 
pay for half or some of the registration costs when such short notice was received. 

Valfre voiced support of using contingency funds for unanticipated requests and 

PDF Page 78



City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
February 24, 2020 

Community Auditorium 
Page 7 of 10 

referenced a recent expenditure that was funded using contingency funds. Valfre 
concurred needing to prepare a realistic and transparent training budget and 
increasing training budgets for Council and staff, noting the idea of attending training 
is that it allows having a voice and the ability to express opinions and provide 
leadership. 

Mayor Truax reported on the purposes of having contingency funds and referenced 
other larger unanticipated expenditures that were vetted through the process. Mayor 
Truax advised the appointment to the NLC's Transportation and Infrastructure 
Services federal advocacy committee was unexpected, noting training can be viewed 
as an investment or as an expenditure. Mayor Truax noted this training as an 
investment provides opportunities of influences and expertise on transportation
related issues at-large and keeps the city informed. In addition, Mayor Truax 
proposed increasing the training budgets for Council and staff next budget cycle and 
concurred there needs to be better planning. 

Hearing no further concerns from the Council, Mayor Truax asked for a roll call vote 
on the above motion. 

ROLL CALL VOTE: AYES: Councilors Uhing, Valenzuela, Valfre, and Mayor 
Truax. NOES: Councilor Wenzl. ABSTAINED: Councilor Rippe. COUNCIL 
VACANCY: 1. MOTION CARRIED 4-1. 

8. RESOLUTION NO. 2020-25 OF THE CITY COUNCIL AUTHORIZING TO FILL A 
CITY COUNCIL VACANCY, TERM EXPIRING NOVEMBER 2022 

Staff Report: 
Ruggles and VanderZanden presented the above-proposed resolution for Council 
consideration , noting the proposed resolution is authorizing to fill a City Council 
vacancy, term expiring November 2022. VanderZanden reported the Council was 
notified of the death of Councilor Ronald Thompson on February 12, 2020, who 
passed away at home unexpectedly, noting City Charter§ 31 declares a Council 
vacancy upon an incumbent's death. In addition , VanderZanden presented an 
overview of the Council vacancy appointment process by the remaining Council 
members, pursuant to Charter§ 32, and application requirements outlined in City 
Code § 30.40-30.42. In conclusion of the above-noted staff report, VanderZanden 
advised staff is recommending Council consider approving the proposed resolution as 
outlined in Exhibit A, Legal Notice; Exhibit B, Projected Dates and Procedures for 
Filling City Council Vacancy by Appointment; and Exhibit C, Proposed Interview 
Questions, noting candidate application packets will be due to the City Recorder by 
Friday, March 27, 2020, 5:00p.m. 

Before proceeding with Council discussion, Mayor Truax asked for a motion to adopt 

PDF Page 79



Resolution No. 2020-25. 

City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
February 24, 2020 

Community Auditorium 
Page 8 of 10 

VanderZanden read Resolution No. 2020-25 by title. 

MOTION: Councilor Uhing moved, seconded by Councilor Wenzl, to adopt 
Resolution No. 2020-25 of the City Council Authorizing to Fill a City Council 
Vacancy, Term Expiring November 2022, as amended. 

Council Discussion: 
Council collectively concurred to amend the proposed interview questions, which were 
attached to the staff report, by renumbering the order of the interview questions so 
Question 3 is Question 1 and Question 4 is Question 2 (renumbering questions 
accordingly), to which Ruggles and VanderZanden concurred . 

Council Discussion: 
Hearing no further concerns from the Council, Mayor Truax asked for a voice vote on 
the above motion (amending proposed interview questions attached to the staff 
report) . 

VOICE VOTE: AYES: Councilors Rippe, Thompson, Uhing, Valfre, Wenzl, and 
Mayor Truax. COUNCIL VACANCY: 1. MOTION CARRIED 6-0. 

9. CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS: 
Rippe reported attending Public Safety Advisory Commission (PSAC) meeting, noting 
PSAC did not have a quorum so no official business was conducted; however, PSAC 
was able to review their draft bylaws. Rippe noted due to no quorum in March, PSAC 
will not meet again until April. Rippe reported Sister Cities Committee (SCC) is in the 
process of reviewing its bylaws, noting sec is currently soliciting input from the 
Chamber and City. In addition, Rippe reported on legislated-related matters of interest 
and community-related meetings and events he attended and reported on upcoming 
meetings he was planning to attend. 

Uhing reported she was reappointed to the Washington County Homeless Plan 
Advisory Committee. In addition, Uhing reported on upcoming meetings she was 
planning to attend. 

Valenzuela reported Washington County Board of Commissioners plans to vote on 
the County's proposed Equity Resolution on February 25, 2020, 6:30p.m. , noting she 
encourages support of the resolution as diversity is one of the Council's objectives. 

Valfre reported on Washington County-related matters of interest and community
related meetings and events he attended and reported on upcoming meetings he was 
planning to attend. In response to Valfre's inquiry pertaining to the Washington 

PDF Page 80



City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
February 24, 2020 

Community Auditorium 
Page 9 of 10 

County Community Block Grant application for D Street project, VanderZanden noted 
the Public Works Director will be presenting the application on the city's behalf. In 
addition, Valfre reported on his personal out-of-state trip in March, noting he will be 
back in time for the Council Meeting in March. 

Wenzl reported attending Parks and Recreation Commission (P&R) meeting, noting 
P&R heard presentations on Lincoln Park Jump Park Restoration Project and Pacific 
University's Softball Hitting Facility at Lincoln Park. Wenzl indicated she voiced 
concerns and push back on the proposed shared-use facility schedule for the softball 
hitting facility, noting Pacific University is planning to make a presentation to Council 
at a later date. Wenzl provided overall positive feedback from the Annual Boards and 
Commissions (B/C) Recognition Dinner and made suggestions, such as having award 
presentations at the beginning of the dinner and sharing responsibility of making the 
B/C introductions. In addition, Wenzl reported Committee for Community Involvement 
(CCI) meets in March and will be recapping its plans for the Annual Town Meeting, to 
which Council collectively concurred that CCI could set a proposed date and 
VanderZanden noted the police station video was being updated. 

10. City Manager's Report: 
VanderZanden reported on upcoming meetings and events as noted in the Council 
calendar. VanderZanden reminded Council to fill out the consultant's survey from the 
Council Retreat, noting the consultation has prepared a compilation of results for the 
Council Goals and Objectives Refinement Work Session scheduled on March 16, 
2020. In addition, VanderZanden reported on various upcoming meetings and 
updates on department-related activities and projects. 

11. MAYOR'S REPORT: 
Mayor Truax announced dates of various upcoming activities, events and meetings as 
noted in the Council Calendar. Mayor Truax reported on legislative-related matters of 
interest. Mayor Truax noted he plans to testify as a citizen and advocate in favor of 
the Metro Council's proposed measure to fund housing services on the May 19, 2020, 
ballot. Mayor reported he plans to attend his first Historic Landmarks Board meeting 
as Council Liaison. In addition, Mayor Truax reported on various local, regional, 
Metro, and Washington County-related matters of interest and meetings he attended, 
upcoming community-related events, and upcoming meetings and events he was 
planning to attend. 

12. ADJOURNMENT: 
Mayor Truax recessed the regular Council meeting at 9:24p.m. and announced 
Council would be reconvening in the conference room to conduct an Executive 
Session in accordance with ORS 192.660(2)(F) to consider information or records that 
are exempt by law from public inspection . The Council may return to open meeting to 
consider taking formal action on matters discussed in executive session. 

PDF Page 81



1. RECONVENE REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING: 

City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
February 24, 2020 

Community Auditorium 
Page 10 of 10 

Mayor Truax reconvened the regular Council meeting at 9:41 p.m. 

ROLL CALL: COUNCIL PRESENT: Timothy Rippe; Elena Uhing; Mariana 
Valenzuela; Adolph "Val" Valfre; Malynda Wenzl; and Mayor Peter Truax. COUNCIL 
VACANCY: 1. 

STAFF PRESENT: Jesse VanderZanden, City Manager; Ashley Driscoll, City 
Attorney; Paul Downey, Administrative Services; Henry Reimann, Interim Police 
Chief; Brenda Camilli, Human Resources Manager; and Anna Ruggles, City 
Recorder. 

2. DISTRICT ATTORNEY'S ORDER: 
Mayor Truax reported the purpose of Council reconvening the regular meeting at this 
time was to consider taking formal action on matters discussed in executive session. 

Before proceeding with Council discussion, Mayor Truax asked for a motion to 
consider taking formal action on the District Attorney's Order. [Petitions of Forest 
Grove/Hillsboro News-Times, District Attorney Order, dated February 21, 2020, 
decision regarding the public interest in due process letter and executive summary, 
ordering the City to release Exhibits 1, 4 (pages 1 to 3), 5, 6 and 7]. 

MOTION: Councilor Wenzl moved, seconded by Councilor Uhing, to Authorize 
City Staff to comply with the District Attorney's Order, Petitions requesting 
documents from the City regarding former Police Chief Jane Schutz. 

Council Discussion: 
Hearing no concerns from the Council, Mayor Truax asked for a voice vote on the 
above motion. 

VOICE VOTE: AYES: Councilors Rippe, Uhing, Valenzuela, Valfre, Wenzl, and 
Mayor Peter Truax. COUNCIL VACANCY: 1. MOTION CARRIED 6-0. 

3. ADJOURNMENT: 
Mayor Truax adjourned the regular Council meeting at 9:43p.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Anna D. Ruggles, CMC, City Recorder 

PDF Page 82



. FOREST ~ 
GROVE OREGON 

A place where families and businesses thrive. 

City Council Executive Session Minutes 
Monday, February 24, 2020 

9:00 p.m., Community Auditorium 

Minutes are unofficial until approved by Council. 

1. CALLED TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL: 
Mayor Peter Truax called the Executive Session to order at 9:29p.m. 

ROLL CALL: COUNCIL PRESENT: Timothy Rippe; Elena Uhing; Mariana 
Valenzuela ; Adolph "Val" Valfre; Malynda Wenzl , Council President; and Mayor Peter 
Truax. COUNCIL VACANCY: 1. 

STAFF PRESENT: Jesse VanderZanden , City Manager; Ashley Driscoll, City 
Attorney; Paul Downey, Administrative Services; Henry Reimann, Interim Police 
Chief; Brenda Camilli, Human Resources Manager; and Anna Ruggles, City 
Recorder. 

2. EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
The City Council met in Executive Session in accordance with: 

ORS 192.660(2)(F) to consider information or records that are exempt by law from 
public inspection. 

3. ADJOURNMENT: 
With the consensus of the Council , Mayor Truax adjourned the Executive Session at 
9:41 p.m. and announced the Council would reconvene into regular Council meeting 
to consider taking formal action on matters discussed in executive session. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Anna D. Ruggles , CMC, City Recorder 

CITY OF FOREST GROVE P. 0 . BOX 326 FOREST GROVE, OR 97116 503·992·3200 www.forestgrove-or.gov PDF Page 83



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

PDF Page 84



Council Liaison: 
Members Present: 

Student Advisor: 
Members Absent: 
Staff Liaison: 

Ron Thompson - present 

Approved 

Community Forestry Commission 
Community Auditorium 

1915 Main Street, Forest Grove, OR 
January 15, 2020 

Page 1 of 2 

Mark Nakajima, Chair; Michael Howell, Vice Chair; 
Bruce Countryman; David Hunter 
Declan Lynch- absent 
Lance Schamberger, Jen Warren 
Dan Riordan - present 

Call to Order and Role: The January 15, 2020, meeting was called to order by Chair Nakajima 
at 5:35pm. 

Citizen Communication: None 

Minutes Approval: David made a motion, seconded by Bruce, to approve the December 18, 
2019 minutes as presented. The motion passed unanimously. 

Action Items/Discussion: 

1 . Election of Chair and Vice Chair for CY 2020 - Bruce made a motion seconded by David 
to re-elect Mark as Chair for Calendar Year 2020. The motion passed unanimously. The 
CFC also adopted a motion to re-elect Michael as Vice-Chair. The motion passed 
unanimously. 

2. Adopt Meeting Dates for CY 2020- David made a motion, seconded by Michael to adopt 
meeting dates for Calendar Year 2020. Meeting dates are the third Wednesday of the 
month except for July and August when the CFC will not meet. 

3. Discuss Bylaw Revisions for City Council Approval - The Commission continued review 
of the CFC bylaws. The Commission agreed that the CFC purpose be updated to include 
that the CFC serves as the tree board for Tree City USA® qualification and the powers 
and duties be updated to include coordinating the annual Arbor Day celebration and 
overseeing the City's Urban Forest Management Plan. Discussion also included review 
of requirements for removal of protected trees included in the current bylaws and the 
Development Code. David recommended that trees be evaluated by a certified ISA 
arborist prior to issuing the permit. David also recommended person evaluating the tree 
shouldn't be allowed to do the removal work. The Commission also discussed clarifying 
that CFC decisions are appealable to City Council and that the current requirement that 
removal of a protected tree be delayed for one year should be deleted. 

CITY OF FOREST GROVE P. 0 . BOX 326 FOREST GROVE, OR 97116 503-992-3200 www.forestgrove-or.gov 

PDF Page 85



Page 2 of2 

The Commission will consider potential bylaw revisions during the February meeting. City 
Council consideration of the proposed updated bylaws is expected in April. 

Liaison Update: Councilor Thompson provided an update of the last City Council meeting. 

Member Update: None 

Next Meeting: February 19, 2020,· 5:30pm at the City Auditorium. 

Meeting Adjournment: David made a motion, seconded by Michael to adjourn the meeting at 
6:31 pm. The motion passed unanimously. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Dan Riordan 
CFC Staff Liaison 

PDF Page 86



Members Present: 
Members Absent: 
Staff Present: 
Citizens Present: 

APPROVED Forest Grove Historic Landmarks Board 
Community Auditorium, 1915 Main Street 
January 28, 2020 -- 6:30 P.M. Page 1 of 3 

Jennifer Brent, George Cushing, Mark Fischer, Kelsey Trostle 
Holly Tsur, Bill Youngs (01 vacancy) 
Bryan Pohl 
03 (Diana Painter, Gary Eddings, Melody Haveluck) 

1. Call to Order: Trostle opened the meeting at 6:29 p.m. Bryan Pohl and Diana Painter were 
introduced. 

2. Citizen Communication: None. 

3. Action Items I Discussion: 

A. Downtown District Nomination: Diana Painter explained the draft document she had 
prepared for the Board 's review. She noted that SHPO provided her with outdated survey 
information (from the early 1980s) and the error was not realized until very late in the 
preparation of this draft. She felt she had corrected the document to reflect the updated 
information to include the most recent survey data prepared by HPNW; she believes the 
document was now ready for review by the Board. She noted a few errors and 
corrections she had already discovered but it was basically a completed document. 

She noted that many of the photos were of poor quality primarily because of the small 
size in the database she was provided. But she also noted that she had been able to take 
new photos on this visit to Forest Grove and the weather had cooperated so they will be 
included in the final document. In addition, there will be examples of architectural details 
in the final document as well as a map of contributing and non-contributing properties. 

Ms. Painter requested that the Board review the document for typos, any areas of 
personal knowledge, and any factual errors. She said that there are multiple sections of 
the document and questioned the advisability of just giving portions of the document to 
each member for individual review. The Board quickly understood her concern and 
agreed that each member will review the entire document. 

After discussion of the timetable and the document, staff was requested to provide hard 
copies to all members for their review. Board members will review the document and 
forward all edits to staff by February 1 01h , to be forwarded to Ms. Painter by February 
151h. That will give her time to implement the edits and forward the document to SHPO by 
their March 1 deadline. 

B. 2020 Work Plan: The packet included the updated work plan which incorporated the 
changes as directed by the Board at the previous meeting, including the task of making 
the preservation grant application available in Spanish. Fischer/Brent to adopt the 2020 
Work Plan. Motion carried unanimously. 

C. January - June 2020 Editorial Calendar: Trostle went over the current events and 
needs and the Board agreed that our primary focus for the next few months should 
continue to be the Photo Contest. 

D. Updated Bylaws: Pohl said he had reviewed the draft Bylaws and they were in line with 
the City Council 's directive. The Board specifically looked at the Purpose Statement and 
Powers and Duties. Fischer asked if it should just refer to historic districts but the Board 
agreed that the city as a whole was within our realm because there were many 
historically-significant properties outside of the districts and there might be future districts 
as well. Fischer/Brent to adopt the bylaws. Motion carried unanimously. 

Trostle raised a concern she had that was related to the bylaws: the Board is currently 
storing all photos and related documents in her personal drop box, for which she is 

PDF Page 87



Forest Grove Historic Landmarks Board 
Community Auditorium, 1915 Main Street 
January 28, 2020 -- 6:30 P.M. Page 2 of 3 

paying $20 monthly. She noted she had her own personal photos in it as well. The 
question is what would happen to the contents if she left the Board. It was noted that a 
previous Board member had many relevant photos in his personal collection and the 
Board had been unable to obtain them after many attempts. To continue to lose 
irreplaceable photos in the future would be unfortunate. Pohl noted that this topic (public 
records in private hands) had come up before in the City, with no resolution . He said he 
would discuss this with staff to craft a solution to this problem. 

E. 2020 Meeting Schedule: The suggested schedule was the fourth Tuesday of the month 
except for the December meeting being moved to the third Tuesday to avoid the holiday. 
Brent noted that many school holidays conflicted with that schedule and other Board 
members agreed; several noted that they also planned time off during other months as 
well. It was agreed that no matter when the meetings were scheduled there would always 
be conflicts with vacations and other events. The question about a conflict with Thanks
giving in November was discussed, and it was suggested that the November meeting 
also be moved to the third Tuesday. Brent/Fischer to meet on the fourth Tuesday of 
the month in January through October, and the third Tuesday of the month in 
November and December. Motion carried unanimously. 

F. Officer Elections: Pohl said he had spoken with Tsur about the chair position, and that 
she said if someone else were elected she would fully support them. If not, she would be 
willing to remain Chair for one more term. Brent said she was not interested in being 
chair at this time, and Fischer said he needed more time on the Board before he could 
consider taking on that responsibility. It was noted that Youngs' current time constraints 
prevented him from the position. Cushing said that he preferred to continue as secretary. 
Trostle said that with her work she was unable to take chair position at this time, but she 
would accept the vice-chair position. Cushing/Fischer to elect Tsur as Chair, Trostle 
as Vice-Chair, and Cushing as Secretary. Motion carried unanimously. 

G. Alternative Funding Sources: Fischer said that he and Youngs had not had time to 
pursue this any further, but they hoped to do so before the next meeting. Pohl noted that 
the Main Street program and the urban renewal district were continuing and that grant 
money might become available through those programs. 

H. Photo Contest: Brent said that she and Cushing had promoted the contest at the 
Chamber of Commerce meeting and she had received one sponsor already from that 
effort. She had also communicated with the administrative assistant at the chamber to 
have it included in the chamber Friday Flash. She said that she, Cushing and Melody 
Haveluck met briefly before the meeting and that Ms. Haveluck had volunteered to spear
head the pursuit of sponsors for the contest. A suggestion arose that a prize of a guided 
tour of the A. T. Smith house might be great also; Gary Eddings said he would talk to the 
FHFG to try and arrange it. Brent will contact Whalen Garfias to see if her husband could 
provide a Spanish language version of the contest rules. 

4. Old Business/New Business: 

A. Approval of Historic Landmarks Board Meeting Minutes. The meeting minutes of 
December 17, 2019 were approved as submitted. 

B. FHFG Report. Gary Eddings reported that although their social media program was 
gaining tremendous support, there was no progress being made on a printed newsletter. 
He passed out copies of their new Historic Preservation Resource Guide. He said that 
their board was discussing what homes might be eligible to receive a plaque, the 
question being whether only homes in historic districts were qualified or whether any 
historically-significant home should also be eligible. 

C. Staff Update. Pohl reported that a study of downtown parking was being undertaken. He 
also noted that the Library/Police Station block was currently under two different zones 

PDF Page 88



Forest Grove Historic Landmarks Board 
Community Auditorium, 1915 Main Street 
January 28, 2020 -- 6:30 P.M. Page 3 of 3 

and was being evaluated to make the entire block Town Center Transition . He further 
described recent building projects around town. 

D. Other: Brent and Cushing discussed the Chamber of Commerce presentation they 
attended concerning the Cornelius business "Pop Up" Program. Ms. Haveluck said that 
they had a grant for a full-time person to promote this concept and it was planned for 
June and July at 121h and Adair with business vendors and entertainment planned for 
each day. This would help to promote Cornelius as a good place to do business. Pohl 
said that Forest Grove had discussed this too but a likely location has not been found or 
any action taken on it. 

5. Adjournment: The January 28, 2020 meeting adjourned at 7:55 p.m. 

These minutes respectively submitted by George Cushing, Secretary 

PDF Page 89



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

PDF Page 90



FOREST ~ 
GROVE OREGON Monthly Building Activity Report 

February-20 

2019-2020 
Period: February-19 Period: 

Category #of Permits Value #of Permits 

Man. Home Setup 1 $110,000.00 

Accessory Dwelling Uni 1 

Sing-Family New 5 $1 ,387,514 7 

SFR Addition & Alt!Repair 3 $516,206 3 

Mult. Fam. New 
Multi Family 

Alterations/Repair/Additions 

Group Care Facility 

Commercial New 

Commerical Addition 

Commercial Alt!Repair 6 $62,224 3 

Industrial New 2 $516,200 

Industrial Addition 

Industrial Alt!Repair 1 $2,000 

Gov/Pub/lnst (new/add 6 $1 ,252,170 1 

Signs 1 $33,000 

Grading 2 

Demolitions 1 

Total 26 $3,879,314 17 

Fiscal Year-to-Date 

February-20 

Value 

$91 ,096 

$1,970,072 

$118,761 

$14,000 

$45,820 

$2,239,749 

2018-2019 2019-2020 

Permits I Value Permits I Value 
220 I $54,079,988 145 I $21,414,953 

Feb 20 monthly bldg activity reports 2019-2020 

PDF Page 91



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

PDF Page 92



FOREST ~ 
GROVE OREGON 

A place 1vhere families and businesses thrive. 

CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM 

TO: City Council 

FROM: Jesse VanderZanden, City Manager 

PROJECT TEAM: Anna Ruggles, CMC, City Recorder 

DATE: March 16, 2020 

CITY RECORDER USE ONLY: 
/ ~ 

AGENDA ITEM#: "" ~ ~ 
MEETING DATE: 00, , L02u 

----

FINAL ACTION: 
--

SUBJECT TITLE: Liquor License New Application & Annual Renewal Applications for 2020 

BACKGROUND: 
ORS 471.166 establishes the process for local government to make recommendation to the Oregon 
Liquor Control Commission (OLCC) concerning the suitability of a new liquor license application . The 
local government is allowed up to 45 days to process the application and provide a recommendation 
to the OLCC. The OLCC requires posting a public notice of the license application at the proposed 
business location. The OLCC also conducts its investigation, i.e., if the business location has had 
problems with OLCC, police or neighbors; the applicant has a criminal history; the applicant has 
provided false information; and/or the applicant has a history of abusing drugs or alcohol. 

The OLCC has also notified the City of the eligible liquor licenses seeking renewal for 2020. ORS 
4 71.166 establishes the process for local government to make recommendation to the OLCC 
concerning the suitability of liquor license renewal application(s). 

City Code, §110.071-110.073, requires any applicant/business requesting City Council endorsement 
for a new liquor license application or liquor license renewal application to submit to a criminal 
background check and have a valid City business license in accordance with City Code. The Police 
Chief has reviewed the applicable criminal records check of the licensee and responsible parties and 
has made recommendation to forward for Council's consideration the attached new liquor license 
application, along with one of the following recommendations: 

• Forward with Approval- No legal basis for denial. 
• Forward with Approval, Supporting Documentation . A criminal record exists; however, the record does 

not contain valid basis for denial as provided by Oregon liquor laws (i.e., felony drug or alcohol-related 
convictions). (Dissemination of criminal record checks is prohibited by State law and is exempted from 
public disclosure). 

• Reject Application, Memorandum required. There is substantial evidence and opposition that warrants 
a Public Hearing before the City Council to hear testimony and to be used in the City's decision-making 
process. 

CITY OF FOREST GROVE P.O. BOX 326 FOREST GROVE, OR 97116-0326 503-992-3200 www.forestgrove-or.gov PDF Page 93



Page 2 of2 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends City Council authorize endorsement of the attached new liquor license application 
and the attached liquor license renewal applications. The City's endorsement will be submitted to 
OLCC and OLCC approves, denies, restricts, or makes recommendations to OLCC Commissioners. 
If the application is approved, the OLCC will issue the license. If the application is denied or restricted, 
there is a process to contest the decision. 

PDF Page 94



FOREST 
GROVE ORE 0 

A plnce where j hmilieJ 1md businesses thri11c. 

CI1Y RECORDER)!J~Y: 

AGENDA ITEM #: ~ '» 
MEETING DATE: 

ANALACTION: ------

LIQUOR LICENSE RECOMMENDATION 
Rec'd 02/28/2020 

BUSINESS NAME / INDIVIDUAL: Bamen Ramen (Applicant: Jason Jewett) 

BUSINESS LOCATION ADDRESS: _2_0_2_4_1_9t_h_A_ve_n_u_e_B_Id-=g~A _________ _ 

LIQUORLICENSETYPE: _L_i_m_i_te_d_O __ n_-P __ re_m __ is_e_s_S_a_l_e_s ________________ __ 

CITY BUSINESS LICENSE: 

l. TYPE OF UCENSE: 2. LICENSE FEE: 
F·COM - Full On-Premises Sales X L - Limited On-Premises Sales X. $100.00 New Application 
F· CAT - Full ON-Premises Sales, Caterer 0 - Off-Premises Sales $ 75.00 ChanQe of License 
F-FPC/F·CLU -Full On-Premises, Private SEW - Special Event Winery $ 35.00 Temporary Sales 
F·PL - Full On-Premises Public Location SEG - Special Event Grower $ 35.00 Annual Renewal 
TSL - Temporary Sales License SED - Special Event Distillery S 20.00 Event License 
BP - Brewery Public House $No Charge: Temp Annual Use 

FULL ON-PREMISES SALES X LIMITED ON-PREMISES SALES OFF-PREMISES SALES 
Allows sale and service r:J. distilled spirits, malt beverages, Allows sale and service of malt beverages, wine Allows the sale of matt beverages, wine and 
wine and cider for consum~ion on licensed premises and and cider for consumption on licensed premises. cider in factory sealed containers for 
required to have dining seating. Allows sale of malt Allows sale of malt beverages, wine and cider In consumption off licensed premises. Also 
beverages, wine and cider in securely covered container securely covered container (growler) for allows applying for sample tasting on 
(growler) for consumption off licensed premises. Also consumption off licensed premises. Also allows premises. 
allows applying for temporary use of annual license for applying for temporary use of annual leense for 
special events off-premises. special events off -premises. 

BREWERY- PUBLIC 
Allows manufacturing matt beverages and to sell and distribute to patrons and wholesalers. Allows 
sale of malt beverages, wine and cider in securely covered container (gra.vfer) for consumption off 
licensed premises . 

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 
APPLICA~LE CRIMINAL RECORDS CHECK: 

D NONE D SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION ATTACHED 

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

~FORWARD WITH APPROVAL D REJECT APPUCATION (Memorandum Requ ired ) 

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

ChiehiiPolice/ Designee Date1 I 

CITY OF FOREST GROVE P. 0 . BOX 326 FOREST GROVE, OR 97116 503-992-3200 www.forestgrove.or.gov PDF Page 95



I 

OREGON LIQUOR CON1 t<Ol COMMISSION 

LIQUOR LICENSE APPLICATION 

1. Application . Do not include any OLCC fees with your application packet (the license fee will be collected at a later 

t ime). Application is being made for: 

Ucense Applied For: CITY AND COUNTY USE ONlY 

0 Brewery 1 st Location 

0 Brewery r d Location 
Date application received: 

0 Brewery 3'd Location 
February 28, 2020 

0 Brewery-Public House 1st location 
Name of City or County: 

0 Brewery-Public House 2nd location 

0 Brewery-Public House 3rd location 
City of Forest Grove 

0 Distillery Recommends this license be: 
0 Full On-Premises, Commercial 

0 Full On-Premises, Caterer 
0 Granted 0 Denied 

0 Full On-Premises, Passenger Carrier By: 

0 Full On-Premises, Other Public location 

0 Full On-Premises, For Profit Private Club 
Date: 

0 Full On-Premises, Nonprofit Private Club 

0 Grower Sales Privilege l rt location 

0 Grower Sales Privilege 2"d location 

0 Grower Sales Privilege 3'd location OLCC USE ONLY 

~ limited On-Premises Date application received: 
0 Off-Premises ~r- l'1 r ~~ 0 Off-Premises with Fuel Pumps 

1E 0 Warehouse 

0 Wholesale Malt Beverage & Wine 
By: 

0 Winery 1 rt location Date application accepted as initially complete: 
0 Winery 2nd location /}, ( '2,0. 1,.-0 
0 Winery 3'd Location 

~ By: 

license Action(s): Nlo 

(Applicant #4) 

OLCC FINANCIAL SERVICES USE ONLY 

OlCC Uqua Ucense Aj)plicatlon (Rev. 
PDF Page 96



OREGON LIQUOR CON1 ROL COMMISSION 

UOR LICENSE APPLICATION 

Applicant #3 Applicant #4 

4. Trade Name of the Business (Name Customers Will See) 

~~ 14tft\~ 
5. Business Address (Number and Street Address of the Location that will have the liquor license) 

~2--'f ~~~ ,4-a.re_ A-
City Zip Code 

6. Does the business address currently have an OLCC liquor license? 

7. Does the business address currently have an OLCC marijuana license? 

8. Mailing Address/POBox, Number, Street, Rural Route (where the OLCC will send your mail) 

xvy {l,(u Jr e-r 
Ci~/T State 

oP-
Zip Code 

~8/(h 
9. Location 

t (I 
Contact Person for this Application 

~f /[A_ JC-N e._ 7--t-
Mailing Address City 

H-flRrf 
I understand that marijuana (such as use, consumption, ingestion, inhalation, samples, give-away, sale, etc.) is 

prohibited on the licensed premises. 

I attest that all answers on all forms, documents, and information provided to the OLCC are true and complete. 

Applicant Signature(s) 

• Each individual person listed as an applicant must sign the appl ication . 
• If an applicant is an entity, such as a corporation or LLC, at least one person who is authorized to sign for the entity 

must sign the application. 

• A person with the authority to sign on behalf of the applicant (such as the applicant's attorney or a person with 
of may sign the application. If a person other than an nt signs the application, please 

authority. 

(Applicant#3) (Applicant #4) 

OLCC Uquor Ucense Application (Rev. 10/2018} 
PDF Page 97



OREGON LIQUOR CONTROL COMMISSION 

BUSINESS INFORMATION 

Please Print or Type ~~ tY) {i1 ~~('{\{;VI lJ__lj 

Applicant Name: 'd?s Sb;Q · ~l :.it7\ Phone: · 

Trade Name (dba): ~~ J:4<(M ~. t;f;:;;:L 

BusinesslocationAddress :~~~~~~i~~L~f-~~~~~-'~~~~1~~8~-~~~~~~~ 
City: __ -+--&e~.....,-L'ff=-L-~&ta~J...e.~-----"'<-a-¥-'(L=-- ZIP Code:.____.)?,__~....:..........(-=-/--=~:::....__-

Business Hours: 
Sunday to -=~-
Monday '13o to 7 '3 6 

T"esday /I ~ to 1~ 
VVednesday ~~ to 
Thursday to " 

Friday to ___,./~= 
Saturday !l 17 to 9 "J 0 

Outdoor Area Hours: 
___ to _ _ _ 

Alcohol service Hours: to __ _ 

closed, how Te.±, A lk StJf)~ S 

The exterior area is adequately viewed and/or 
supervised by Service Permittees. 

- ------ (Investigator's Initials) 

Seasonal Variations: 0 Yes XNo If yes, explain:. _____________ ___ _ 

ENTERTAINMENT 

0 Live Music 

0 Recorded Music 

0 OJ Music 

0 Dancing 

0 Nude Entertainers 

Lounge: 

Banquet: 

Check all that apply: 

0 Karaoke 

0 Coin-operated Games 

0 Video Lottery Machines 

0 Social Gaming 

0 Pool Tables 

D Other:-------

Outdoor: 2 t 
Other (explain): 

Total Seating: __ _ 

DAYS & HOURS OF LIVE OR OJ MUSIC 

Sunday to 
Monday to 
Tuesday to 
Wednesday to 
Thursday to 
Friday to 
Saturday to 

OLCC USE ONLY 

Investigator Verified Seating:_(Y) _ (N) 

Investigator Initials: ______ _ 

Date: _________ _ 

I understand if my answers LCC may deny my license application. 

Applicant Signature: --------- Date: z.......- ( ~ ..... ~ 
00-452-0LCC (6522) 
www.oregon.gov/olcc (rev. 12107) PDF Page 98



FOREST 
GROVE ORE 

A place where families twd h11sinesses thrive. 

LIQUOR LICENSE RECO 

CITY RECORDER USE ONLY: 

AGENDA ITEM#: 

MEETING DATE: 

FINAL ACTION: 

BUSINESS NAME I INDIVIDUAL: ?-Eleven Store #207150 --------------------------------------------------------
BUSINESS LOCATION ADDRESS: 2001 Yew Street 

----------~~~----------------------------------------

LIQUOR LICENSE TYPE: Off-Premises --------------------------------------------------------
CITY BUSINESS LICENSE: 20606 

----~--------------------------------------------------

1. TYPE OF LICENSE: 2. UCENSEFEE: 
F-COM- Full On-Premises Sales L - limited On-Premises Sales $100.00 New Application 
F· CAT - Full ON-Premises Sales, Caterer X 0 - Off-Premises Sales $ 75.00 Change of License 
F-FPC/F·CLU - Full On-Premises, Private SEW - Special Event Winery $ 35.00 Temporary Sales 
F-PL- Full On-Premises Public Location SEG - Special Event Grower X $ 35.00 Annual Renewal 
TSL - Temporary Sales License SED - S_pecial Event Distillery $ 20.00 Event License 
BP - Brewery Public House $ No Charge: Temp Annual Use 

FULL ON-PREMISES SALES LIMITED ON-PREMISES SALES X OFF-PREMISES SALES 
Allows sale and service of distilled spirits, malt beverages, Allows sale and service of malt beverages, wine Allows the sale of malt beverages, wine and 
wine and cider for consumption on licensed premises and and cider for consumption on licensed premises. cider in factory sealed containers for 
required to have dining seating. Allows sale of malt Allows sale of malt beverages. wine and cider in consumption off licensed premises. Also 
beverages, wine and cider in securely covered container securely covered container (growler) for allows applying for sample tasting on 
(growler) for consumption off licensed premises. Also consumption off licensed premises. so allows premises. 
allows applying for temporary use of annual license for applying for temporary use of annual license for 
special events off-premises. ~al events offjlfemises. 

BREWERY - PUBLIC 
Allows manufacturing malt beverages and to sell and distribute to patrons and wholesalers. Allows 
sale of malt beverages, wine and cider in securely covered container (growler) for consumption off 
licensed premises . 

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 
APPLICABLE CRIMINAL RECORDS CHECK: 

D NONE D SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION ATTACHED 

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

Date ' { 
z/zs)zozo 

Chief of Police/ or Designee 

CITY OF FOREST GROVE P. 0 . BOX 326 FOREST GROVE. OR 97116 503-992-3200 www.forestgrove-or .gov 
PDF Page 99



FOREST 
GROVE OREGO 

A place 1vhere f amilies attd btmtzesses thrive. 

LIQUOR LICE SE RECO 

CITY RECORDER USE ONLY: 

AGENDA ITEM#: ~.~ • 1r 
MEETING DATE: 

FINAL ACTION: 

BUSINESSNAME/INDIVIDUAL: _D __ iv_e_ffi_icy~C_a_re_· ----------------------------------

BUSINESS LOCATION ADDRESS: 2104 Main Street --------------------------------------------------------
LIQUOR LICENSE TYPE: F-COM Full On-Premises 

CITY BUSINESS LICENSE: 21018 --------------------------------------------------------

l. TYPE OF LICENSE: 2. UCENSEFEE: 
X F·COM - Full On-Premises Sales L - Limited On-Premises Sales $100.00 New Application 

F- CAT - Full ON-Premises Sales, Caterer 0 - Off-Premises Sales $ 75.00 Change of License 
F·FPC/F-CLU- Full On-Premises, Private SEW - Special Event Winery $ 35.00 Temporary Sales 
F-PL - Full On-Premises Public Location SEG - Special Event Grower X $ 35.00 Annual Renewal 
TSL - Temporary Sales License SED - Special Event Distillery $ 20.00 Event License 
BP - Brewery Public House $No Charge: Temp Annual Use 

X FULL ON-PREMISES SALES LIMITED ON-PREMISES SALES OFF-PREMISES SALES 
Allows sale and service of distilled spirits, malt beverages, Allows sale and service of malt beverages, wine Allows the sale of malt beverages, wine and 

·ne and cider for consumption on licensed premises and and cider for consumption on licensed premises. cider in factory sealed containers for 
required to have dining seating. Allows sale of malt Allows sale of malt beverages, ·ne and cider in consumption off licensed premises. Also 
beverages, wine and cider in securely covered container securely covered container (growler) for allows applying for sample tasting on 
{growler) for consumption off licensed prern.ises. Also consumption off licensed premises. Also allows premises. 
allows applying for temporary use of annual license for applying for temporary use of annual license for 
special events off-premises. special events off-premises. 

BREWERY - PUBLIC 
Allows manufacturing malt beverages and to sell and distribute to patrons and wholesalers. Allows 
sale of malt beverages, wine and cider in securely covered container (growler) for consumption off 
licensed premises . 

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 
APPLICABLE CRIMINAL RECORDS CHECK: 

D NONE D SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION ATTACHED 

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

iJ FORWARD WITH APPROVAL D REJECT APPUCATION (Memorandum Requi red) 

••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

Chiefo Date 

CITY OF FOREST GROVE P. 0 BOX 326 FOREST GROVE, OR 9711 www.fore grove-or gov 
PDF Page 100



FOREST 
GROVE OREGO 

A place Jvhere families and businesses thrive. 

CITY RECORDER USE ONLY: 

AGENDA ITEM#: '3S .. 3 
MEETING DATE: 

FINAL ACTION: 

LIQUOR LICENSE RECO ENDATION 

BUSINESS NAME I INDIVIDUAL: Forest Theater --------------------------------------------------------
BUSINESS LOCATION ADDRESS: 191 1 Pacific Avenue 

--~--~~~~~~~------------------------------------

LIQUOR LICENSE TYPE: Limited On-Premises 
------------~--~~------------------------------------

CITY BUSINESS LICENSE: 20038 --------------------------------------------------------
J. TYPE OF LICENSE: 2. LICENSE FEE: 

F-COM - Full On-Premises Sales X L - Limited On-Premises Sales $100.00 New Application 
F· CAT - Full ON-Premises Sales, Caterer 0 - Off-Premises Sales $ 75.00 Change of License 
F·FPC/F·CLU - Full On-Premises, Private SEW - Special Event Winery $ 35.00 Temporary Sales 
F·PL- Full On-Premises Public Location SEG - Special Event Grower X $ 35.00 Annual Renewal 
TSL - Temporary Sales License SED - Special Event Distillery $ 20.00 Event License 
BP - Brewery Public House $ No Charge: Temp Annual Use 

FULL ON-PREMISES SALES X LIMITED ON-PREMISES SALES OFF-PREMISES SALES 
Allows sale and service of distilled spirits, malt beverages, Allows sale and service of malt beverages, wine Allows the sale of malt beverages, wine and 
wine and cider for consumption on licensed premises and and cider for consumption on licensed premises. cider in factQI"y sealed containers for 
required to have dining seating. Allows sale of malt Allows sale of malt beverages, wine and dder in consumption off licensed premises. Also 
beverages, wine and cider in securely covered container securely covered container (growler) for allows applying for sample tasting on 
(growler) for consumption off licensed premises. Also consumption off licensed premises. Also allows premises. 
allows applying for temporary use of annual license for applying for temporary use of annual license for 
special events off-premises. special events off-premises. 

BREWERY- PUBLIC 
Allows manufacturing malt beverages and to sell and distribute to patrons and wholesalers. Allows 
sale of malt beverages, wine and cider in securely covered container (growler) for consumption off 
licensed premises . 

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 
APPLICABLE CRIMINAL RECORDS CHECK: 

D NONE D SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION ATTACHED 

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

~FORWARD WITH APPROVAL D REJECT APPUCATION (Memorandum Required) 

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

Chief of Police/ or Designee Date 
I r 

CITY OF FOREST GROVE P. 0 . BOX 326 FOREST GROVE. OR 97116 503-992·3200 www.forestgrove-or gov 
PDF Page 101



FOREST 
GROVE OREGO 

A place where families a11d btlsinesses thrive. 

CITY RECORDER USE ONLY: 

AGENDA ITEM t : 3. J. 4: 
MEETING DATE: 

FINAL ACTION: 

LIQUOR LICE SE RECO ENDATIO 

BUSINESS NAME I INDIVIDUAL: _K_a_i_se_r_B_r_e_w--.in_,goL.....:..C-=.o.:...:.m.:..a::p-=-a:..:._n.L_y--=L::.::L::.::C __________ _ 

BUSINESS LOCATION ADDRESS: 1607 Hawthorne St --------------------------------------------------------

LIQUORLICENSETYPE: _B_r_e_w--.e_ryL_-_P--.u-=-b--.lic~H-=-o---us~e~-------------

CITY BUSINESS LICENSE: 20918 --------------------------------------------------------

1.. TYPE OF LICENSE: 2. UCENSEFEE: 
F.COM - Full On-Premises Sales l - Umited On-Premises Sales $100.00 New Application 
F- CAT - Full ON-Premises Sales, Caterer 0 - Off-Premises Sales $ 75.00 Change of License 
F-FPC/F.CLU - Full On-Premises, Private SEW - Special Event Winery $ 35.00 Temporary Sales 
F-PL - Full On-Premises Public location SEG - Special Event Grower X $ 35.00 Annual Renewal 
TSL - Temporary Sales Ucense SED - Special Event Distillery $ 20.00 Event Ucense 

X BP - Brewery Public House $ No Charge: Temp Annual Use 

FULL ON-PREMISES SALES LIMITED ON-PREMISES SALES OFF-PREMISES SALES 
Allows sale and service of distilled spirits, malt beverages, Allows sale and service of malt beverages, wine Allows the sale of malt beverages, wine and 
wine and cider for consumption on licensed premises and and cider for consumption on licensed premises. cider in factory sealed containers for 
required to have dining seating. Allows sale of malt Allows sale of malt beverages, wine and cider in consumption off licensed premises. Also 
beverages, wine and cider in securely covered container securely covered container (growler) for allows applying for sample tasting on 
(growler) for consumption off licensed premises. so consumpbon off licensed premises. Also allows premises. 
allows applying for temporary use of annual license for applying for temporary use of annual license for 
special events off-premises. special events off-premises. 

X BREWERY - PUBLIC 
Allows manufacturing malt beverages and to sell and distribute to patrons and wholesalers. Allows 
sale of mall beverages, wine and cider in securely covered container (growter) for consumption off 
licensed premises . 

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 
APPLICABLE CRIMINAL RECORDS CHECK: 

D NONE D SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION AlTACHED 

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

RECOMMENDED ACTION : 

;E1 FORWARD WITH APPROVAL D REJECT APPLICATION (Memorandum Required) 

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

Chief of Police/ or Designee Date/ I 

CITY OF FOREST GROVE P 0 BOX 326 FO EST GROVE. OR 971 6 503-992-3200 .forestgrove-or gov 
PDF Page 102



FOREST 
GROVE OREG 

A place rvhere families atJd bminesses thrive. 

CITY RECORDER USE ONLY: 

AGENDA ITEM#: ~.3" ~ 
MEETING DATE: 

FINAL ACTION: 

LIQUOR LICENSE RECO MEND A TION 

BUSINESS NAME I INDIVIDUAL: Kama Aina --------------------------------------------------------
BUSINESS LOCATION ADDRESS: 1910 Main Street, Suite A 

--------~~~~~~~~--------------------------------

UQUOR UCENSE TYPE: F-COM Full On-Premises 

CITY BUSINESS UCENSE: 20931 --------------------------------------------------------

l. TYPE OF LICENSE: 2. LICENSE FEE: 
X F-COM- Full On-Premises Sales L - Limited On-Premises Sales $100.00 New Application 

F- CAT- Full ON-Premises Sales, Caterer X 0 - Off-Premises Sales $ 75.00 Change of License 
F-FPC/F-CLU - Full On-Premises, Private SEW - Special Event Winery $ 35.00 Temporary Sales 
F·PL - Full On-Premises Public Location SEG - Special Event Grower X $ 35.00 Annual Renewal 
TSL - Temporary Sales License SED - Special Event Distillery $ 20.00 Event License 
BP - Brewery Public House $ No Charge: Temp Annual Use 

X FULL ON-PREMISES SALES LIMITED ON-PREMISES SALES X OFF-PREMISES SALES 
Allows sale and service of distilled spirits, malt beverages, Allows sale and service of malt beverages, wine Allows the sale of malt beverages, wine and 
wine and cider for consumption on licensed premises and and cider for consumption on licensed premises. cider in factory sealed containers for 
required to have dining seating. Allows sale of mat Allows sale of malt beverages, wine and cider in consumption off licensed premises. Also 
beverages, wine and cider in securely covered container securely covered container (growler) for allows applying for sample tasting on 
(growler) for consumption off licensed premises. Also consumption off licensed premises. Also allows premises. 
allows applying for temporary use of annual license for applying for temporary use of annual license for 
special events off-premises. special events off-premises. 

BREWERY- PUBLIC 
Allows manufacturing mall beverages and to sell and distribute to patrons and wholesalers. Allows 
sale of malt beverages, ·ne and cider in securely covered container (growler) for consumption off 
licensed premises . 

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 
APPLICABLE CRIMINAL RECORDS CHECK: 

D NONE D SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION ATTACHED 

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

~FORWARD WITH APPROVAL D REJECT APPLICATION {Memorandum Required) 

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

Chief of Police/ or Designee 

CITY OF FOREST GROVE P 0 . BOX 326 FOREST GROVE. OR 91116 503-992·3200 www.forestgrove-or.gov 
PDF Page 103



FOREST 
GROVE ORE 0 

A place Jvhere families and bz~sinesses thrive. 

CITY RECORDER USE ONLY: 

AGENDA ITEM N: 

MEETING DATE: 

FINAL ACTION: 

LIQUOR LICENSE RECO ENOATIO 

BUSINESS NAME/ INDIVIDUAL: La Estrella Tacos 
~~~~~~~------------------------------

BUSINESS LOCATION ADDRESS: 2432 - 2434 19th Avenue 
~~~~~--~--~~=-----------------------------

LIQUOR LICENSE TYPE: Limited On-Premises 
----~~------~~--------------------------------

CITY BUSINESS LICENSE: 20567 
~~~--------------------------------------------

1.. TYPE OF UCENSE: 2. UCENSEFEE: 
F-COM - Full On-Premises Sales X L - Limited On-Premises Sales $100.00 New Application 
F- CAT- Full ON-Premises Sales, Caterer 0 - Off-Premises Sales $ 75.00 Change of License 
F-FPC/F-CLU - Full On-Premises, Private SEW - Special Event Winery $ 35.00 Temporary Sales 
F-PL - Full On-Premises Public Location SEG - Special Event Grower X $ 35.00 Annual Renewal 
TSL - Temporary Sales License SED - Special Event Distillery $ 20.00 Event License 
BP - Brewery Public House $ No Charge: Temp Annual Use 

FULL ON-PREMISES SALES X LIMITED ON-PREMISES SALES OFF-PREMISES SALES 
Allows sale and service of distilled spirits, malt beverages, Allows sale and service of malt beverages, wine Allows the sale of malt beverages, wine and 
wine and cider for consumption on licensed premises and and cider for consumption on licensed premises. cider in factory sealed containers for 
required to have dining seating. Allows sale of malt Allows sale of malt beverages. wine and cider in consumption off licensed premises. Also 
beverages, wine and cider in securely covered container securely covered container (growler) for allows applying for sample tasting on 
(growler) for consumption off licensed premises. Also consumption off licensed premises. Also allows premises. 
allows applying for temporary use of annual license for applying for temporary use of annual license for 
special events off-premises. special events off-premises. 

BREWERY- PUBLIC 
Allows manufacturing malt beverages and to sell and distribute to patrons and wholesalers. Allows 
sale of malt beverages, wine and cider in securely covered container (growler) for consumption off 
licensed premises . 

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 
APPLICABLE CRIMINAL RECORDS CHECK: 

D NONE D SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION ATTACHED 

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

, [2ffoRWARD WITH APPROVAL D REJECT APPUCATION (Memorandum Required ) 

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

~~~·· Chief of Pone;o;oe;;gnee Datf!l 

CITY OF FORES GROVE P. 0 BOX 326 FOREST GROVE. OR 9 16 503-992-3200 www. forestgrov e-or.gov 
PDF Page 104



FOREST 
GROVE OREGO 

A place where families n1zd b11sinesses thrive. 

CITY RECORDER USE ONLY: 

AGENDA ITEM#: ~ .:S · \_ • 

MEETING DATE: 

FINAL ACTION: 

LIQUOR LICENSE RECO ENDATIO 

BUSINESS NAME I INDIVIDUAL: _M_cM_ e_n_am_ in_s_G_ra_n_d_L_o_d_,.g._e _________ ___ _ 

BUSINESS LOCATION ADDRESS: 3505 Pacific Avenue 
--------~~~~~~------------------------------------

LIQUOR LICENSE TYPE: F-COM Full On-Premises 

CITY BUSINESS LICENSE: 20027 --------------------------------------------------------

1.. TYPE OF UCENSE: 2. LICENSE FEE: 
X F-COM - Full On-Premises Sales L - Limited On-Premises Sales $100.00 New Application 

F- CAT - Full ON-Premises Sales, Caterer 0 - Off-Premi.ses Sales $ 75.00 Change of License 
F-FPC/F-CLU - Full On-Premises, Private SEW - Special Event Winery $ 35.00 Temporary Sales 
F-PL - Full On-Premises Public Location SEG - Special Event Grower X $ 35.00 Annual Renewal 
TSL - Temporary Sales License SED - Special Event Distillery $ 20.00 Event License 

X BP - Brewery Public House $ No Charge: Temp Annual Use 

X FULL ON-PREMISES SALES LIMITED ON-PREMISES SALES OFF-PREMISES SALES 
Allows sale and service of distilled spirits, malt beverages, Allows sale and service of malt beverages, wine Allows the sale of malt beverages, wine and 
wine and cider for ronsumplion on licensed premises and and cider for coosumption on licensed premises. cider in factory sealed cootainers for 
required to have dining seating. Allows sale of malt Allows sale of malt beverages, wine and cider in coosumplion off licensed premises. Also 
beverages, wine and cider in securely rovered container securely rovered cootainer (growler) for allows applying for sample tasting on 
(growler) for consumption off licensed premises. Also coosumplion off licensed premises. Also allows premises. 
allows applying for temporary use of annual license for applying for temporary use of annual license for 
special events off-premises. special events off-premises. 

X BREWERY- PUBLIC 
Allows manufacturing malt beverages and to sell and distribute to patrons and wholesalers. Allows 
sale of malt beverages, wine and cider in securely rovered container (growler) for coosumplion off 
licensed premises . 

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 
APPLICABLE CRIMINAL RECORDS CHECK: 

D NONE D SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION ATTACHED 

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

~FORWARD WITH APPROVAL D REJECT APPUCATION ( Memorandum Requ ired) 

' •••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

~~~ 
Date J Chief of Police/ or Designee 

CITY OF FOREST GROVE P 0 BOX326 FO EST GROVE. OR 97116 503-992-3200 
PDF Page 105



FOREST 
GROVE 

A place JVhere families a.1Jd busi1lesres thrive. 

LIQUOR LICENSE RECO 

CITY RECORDER USE ONLY: 

AGENDA ITEM 1#: 3 .J.- & 
MEETING DATE: 

-------
FINAL ACTION: 

BUSINESS NAME I INDIVIDUAL: Pizza Schmizza - Forest Grove 

BUSINESS LOCATION ADDRESS: 2042 Main Street 
-=~~~~~~~~--------------------

LIQUOR LICENSE TYPE: Limited On-Premises 
-=~~~~~~~~-----------------

CITY BUSINESS LICENSE: 20298 
-=~~----------------------

.., 
1. TYPE OF LICENSE: 2. UCENSEFEE: 

F-COM- Full On-Premises Sales X L - Limited On-Premises Sales $1 00.00 New Application 
F- CAT- Full ON-Premises Sales, Caterer 0 - Off-Premises Sales $ 75.00 ChanQe of License 
F-FPC/F·CLU- Full On-Premises, Private SEW - Special Event Win~ $ 35.00 Temporary Sales 
F-PL- Full On-Premises Public Location SEG - Special Event Grower X $ 35.00 Annual Renewal 
TSL - Temporary Sales License SED - Special Event Distillery $ 20.00 Event Ucense 
BP - Brewery Public House $ No Charge: Temp Annual Use 

FULL ON-PREMISES SALES X LIMITED ON-PREMISES SALES OFF-PREMISES SALES 
Allows sale and service of distilled spirits, malt beverages, Allows sale and service of mall beverages, wine Allows the sale of malt beverages, wine and 
wine and cider for consumption on licensed premises and and cider for consumption on licensed premises. cider in factory sealed containers for 
required to have dining seating. Allows sale of malt Allows sale of malt beverages, wine and cider in consumption off licensed premises. Also 
beverages, wine and cider in securely covered container securely covered container (growter) for allows applying for sample tasting on 
(growter) for consumption off licensed premises. Also consumption off licensed premises. Also allows premises. 
allows applying for temporary use of annual license for applying for temporary use of annual license for 
special events off-premises. special events off-p!"emises. 

BREWERY - PUBLIC 
Allows manufacturing mall beverages and to sell and distribute to patrons and wholesalers. Allows 
safe of malt beverages, wine and cider in securely covered container (growler) for consumption off 
licensed premises . 

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 
APPLICABLE CRIMINAL RECORDS CHECK: 

D NONE D SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION ATTACHED 

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

RECOMMENDED ACTION : 

~FORWARD WITH APPROVAL D REJECT APPLICATION (Memorandum Required) 

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

Chief of Police/ or Designee Date 
r , 

CITY OF FOREST GROVE P. 0 BOX 326 FOREST GROVE OR 97116 503-992-3200 forestgrove-or gov 
PDF Page 106



FOREST 
GROVE OREGO 

A plnce where families 1md ln1sinesses thrive. 

CITY RECORDER USE ONLY: 

AGENDA ITEM 1: 3·J .. j 
MEETING DATE: 

FINAL ACTION: 

BUSINESS NAME I INDIVIDUAL: _T_h_e_G_ro_w_l_e_r _G_a_ra_,g.._e ______________ _ 

BUSINESS LOCATION ADDRESS: 1837 Pacific Avenue, Suite 133 

LIQUOR LICENSE TYPE: Off-Premises Sales/limited On-Premises Sales 

CITY BUSINESS LICENSE: 21231 ------------------------------------------------------

J. TYPE OF UCENSE: 2. UCENSEFEE: 
F-COM - Full On-Premises Sales L - Limited On-Premises Sales $100.00 New Application 
f . CAT - Full ON-Premises Sales, Caterer X 0 - Off-Premises Sales S 75.00 Change of License 
F·FPC/F·CLU - Full On-Premises, Private SEW - Special Event Winery S 35.00 Temporary Sales 
F·PL - Full On-Premises Public Location SEG - Special Event Grower X $ 35.00 Annual Renewal 
TSL - TemporarySales License SED - Special Event Distillery $ 20.00 Event License 
BP - Brewery Public House $ No Charge: Temp Annual Use 

FULL ON-PREMISES SALES LIMITED ON-PREMISES SALES X OFF-PREMISES SALES 
Allows sale and service of distilled spirits, malt beverages, Allows sale and service of malt beverages, wine Allows the sale of malt beverages, wine and 
wine and cider for consumption on licensed premises and and cider for consumption on licensed premises. cider in factory sealed containers fOf 
required to have dining seating. Allows sale of malt Allows sale of malt beverages, wine and cider in consumption off licensed premises. Also 
beverages, wine and cider in securely covered container securely covered container (growler) fOf allows applying for sample tasting on 
(growler) fOf consumption off licensed premises. Also consumption off licensed premises. Also allows premises. 
allows applying for tempocary use of annual license for applying for temporary use of annual license fOf 
special events off-premises. special events off-premises. 

BREWERY- PUBLIC 
Allows manufacturing malt beverages and to sell and distribute to patrons and wholesalers. Allows 
sale of malt beverages, wine and cider in securely covered container (growler) for consumption off 
licensed premises . 

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 
APPLICABLE CRIMINAL RECORDS CHECK: 

D NONE D SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION ATTACHED 

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

~ORWARD WITH APPROVAL D REJECT APPLICATION ( Memorandum Requ ired ) 

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

Chief of Police/ or Designee Date ( 

CITY OF FORE$ GROVE P 0 . BOX326 FOREST GROVE, OR 97116 503-992-3200 www forestgrove-or gov 
PDF Page 107



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

PDF Page 108



13/10/2020

Measure 34-296: Public Safety Levy

This information, except for the website link(s), was reviewed by the Oregon 
Secretary of State’s Office for compliance with ORS 260.432. SH20-065 PDF Page 109



2

Who receives services from the current levy?

 City neighborhoods
 Urban unincorporated communities
 Rural areas

Proposed Public Safety Levy

PDF Page 110



3

If passed, what would the proposed levy do?

 Replace a five-year levy expiring in June 2021
 Continue countywide public safety services at the 

current level of service ($187.7m, 168.5 positions)
 Add services to address increased domestic violence 

& emergency shelter caseloads 
($9.8m, 11 positions)

Proposed Public Safety Levy

PDF Page 111



43/10/2020

Current Service Level If the 

Proposed Levy Passes

PDF Page 112



5

 Prosecution services addressing crimes throughout the county 
(25.3 District Attorney’s Office positions)

 Treatment and supervision of those who may be released to the 
community, including compliance monitoring for registered sex offenders 
and others with court-ordered supervision requirements. 
(31 Community Corrections positions)

 Supervision and treatment of juvenile offenders. 
(11 Juvenile Department positions)

What current service level funding would 

be provided if the proposed levy passes?

PDF Page 113



6

 Law enforcement personnel providing countywide services in investigations, 
forensics and special teams.  (101.25 Sheriff’s Office positions)

 Example: trained mental health responders including deputies and mental 
health professionals helping people in crisis get medical assistance instead of 
going to jail.

What current service level funding would 

be provided if the proposed levy passes?

5,452

4,869 4,868
4,676

5,456

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Mental Health Response Team Calls for Service PDF Page 114



7

 Victims’ assistance and emergency shelter for women and children 
who are victims of domestic violence. 
(Approximately $7 million over five years)

 Levy funds would continue to support emergency shelter and other 
services provided by: 
 Domestic Violence Resource Center 
 Community Action 
 Family Promise of Washington County 
 Good Neighbor Center 
 Safe Place Youth Shelter
 Family Justice Center

What current service level funding would 

be provided if the proposed levy passes?

PDF Page 115



83/10/2020

Additional Services If the 

Proposed Levy Passes

PDF Page 116



9

 Increased funding for prosecution of child abuse and child pornography 
cases. (1 District Attorney’s Office position)

What services would be added 

if the proposed levy passes?

470

522

567

624

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

2016 2017 2018 2019

Child Abuse Cases Referred
PDF Page 117



10

 In 2019, 985 domestic violence cases were filed, a 36% increase in caseload when compared 
to the previous year. 

 If passed, the levy would provide funding for four additional parole and probation officers 
responsible for addressing the increased domestic violence-related caseloads at a five-year 
cost of $2.4 million. (4 Community Corrections Department positions)

What services would be added 

if the proposed levy passes?

PDF Page 118



11

 Of the 572 beds in the Washington County Jail, one 56‐bed pod (10% 
of total jail-bed space) would be maintained through this portion of 
levy funding. 

 If passed, the replacement levy would provide funding for four 
additional jail deputies at a five-year cost of $2.8 million, allowing the 
jail to operate at full capacity and reduce early release of offenders. 
(4 Sheriff’s Office positions)

What services would be added 

if the proposed levy passes?

PDF Page 119



12

 If passed, the proposed levy would provide $1.5 million of funding 
over five years for contracted services with community-based 
organizations to divert juvenile offenders out of the criminal justice 
system, as appropriate on a case-by-case basis. provide additional 
diversion services at a five-year cost of $1.5 million.

 An estimated 1,000 youth projected to be eligible for this diversion 
program over five years would be assessed, placed on a case plan and 
would participate in programming, outside of the criminal justice 
setting, as provided by a nonprofit organization. 
(Additional contracted services)

What services would be added 

if the proposed levy passes?

PDF Page 120



13

 Funding to reduce the transition time from emergency shelter to 
housing for individuals and families, including survivors of domestic 
violence. Temporary shelters have seen a 70% increase in use over the 
last three years. (2 positions within the nonprofit network of 
emergency shelter providers)

What services would be added 

if the proposed levy passes?

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Sheltered & Unsheltered Homeless People
(January Point-in-Time Count)

Total Homeless All Unsheltered All Sheltered PDF Page 121



143/10/2020

Taxpayer Impact

PDF Page 122



15

 The proposed levy would have a five-year, fixed rate of $0.47 per $1,000 of 
assessed value. This would be an increase of $0.05 per $1,000 of assessed 
value over the current levy. 

 If approved, this would be the first increase in the rate since the original levy 
in the year 2000.  

 In 2021, typical homeowners, based on an average assessed value of 
$300,000, would pay $141 per year, or about $20 more than they paid in 
2020.    

 This assumes an average assessed value (not market value) of $300,000. 
 The tax due in future years would depend on changes in assessed value.

Proposed rate and tax impact, 

if the levy passes:

PDF Page 123



16

 If the levy does not pass, the additional local option property taxes 
would not be levied.

 In 2021, typical homeowners, based on an average assessed value of 
$300,000, would see a $126 per year reduction in their property taxes.

 If the levy does not pass, there would be a reduction in services in 
Washington County affecting prosecution, law enforcement, 
supervision, corrections and emergency shelters likely to begin in 
2021.

Proposed rate and tax impact, 

if the levy does not pass:

PDF Page 124



17

If passed, what would the proposed levy do?

 Replace a five-year levy expiring in June 2021
 Continue countywide public safety services at the 

current level of service ($187.7m, 168.5 positions)
 Add services to address increased domestic violence 

& emergency shelter caseloads 
($9.8m, 11 positions)

Summary

PDF Page 125



183/10/2020

For more information, please visit:

Thank you

This information, except for the website link(s), was reviewed by the Oregon 
Secretary of State’s Office for compliance with ORS 260.432. SH20-065

PDF Page 126



Measure 34-297
Proposed levy for Countywide Library Services

May 19, 2020 Ballot

This information, except for the website link(s), was reviewed by the Oregon Secretary of State’s Office for compliance with ORS 260.432.

PDF Page 127



Current revenue and expenditures (FY19-20)

Local Option Levy
$14 million

From County’s General Fund
$20 million

WCCLS Resources
$34 million

60% 40% 100%

B
u

d
ge

te
d

 
R

e
ve

n
u

e

WCCLS central support 
$9 million

Cash payments to member libraries for operations 
(not for capital expenditures)

$25 million

26% 74%
B

u
d

ge
te

d
 

Ex
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

s

PDF Page 128



If passed, how would levy funds be used?

Funding for public library operations

Measure 34-297 would provide funding to maintain open 

hours for libraries that serve all county residents, including 

libraries in Aloha, Banks, Beaverton, Cedar Mill, Cornelius, 

Forest Grove, Garden Home, Hillsboro, North Plains, 

Sherwood, Tigard, Tualatin and West Slope. 

Libraries saw 3.8 million visits in fiscal year 2018-19.

PDF Page 129



If passed, how would levy funds be used?

Reading programs for children

Measure 34-297 would support children’s reading 
events that average about 285,000 participants each 
year. 

This would include annual summer reading programs 
for youth and literacy programs for preschoolers. 

In addition, libraries would provide reading and 
learning programs for students, including online 
homework and tutoring services for all children in 
Washington County.

PDF Page 130



If passed, how would levy funds be used?

Book purchases

The measure would provide funds for the purchase of 
books, e-books and other materials that are available to 
all library users. 

It would fund the purchase of additional copies of in-
demand books in order to reduce wait times. 

Levy funding would also provide online access that 
allows users to reserve books that can be picked up at 
any library. 

In fiscal year 2018-19, WCCLS library users checked out 
over 11.2 million library materials. 

PDF Page 131



If passed, how would levy funds be used?

Resources for jobseekers

Measure 34-297 would allow libraries to continue to 
provide information and instruction to assist those 
looking for jobs or career development. 

Jobseekers could continue to use library computers 
and internet access to apply for jobs, and access 
learning tools for career development.

PDF Page 132



If passed, how would levy funds be used?

Central support and services that link libraries together

Measure 34-297 would maintain central support and 

services, which include the following: 

• Central sorting and book delivery between 16 

libraries seven days a week, allowing all county 

residents to access the shared collection of 1.6 

million books and other materials; 

• Shared library inventory management and online 

request system; 

• wccls.org website and shared library events calendar; 

• Book deliveries to county residents who are 

homebound or living in care facilities.

PDF Page 133



• If passed, Measure 34-297 would renew a five-year levy that 

is expiring in June 2021. 

• The proposed levy would maintain a fixed rate of $0.22 per 

$1,000 of assessed value, running from July 2021 through 

June 2026. 

• In 2021, typical homeowners with an assessed value of 

$300,000 (not market value) would pay $66 per year if 

passed.

How would Measure 34-297 Affect a Homeowner’s Taxes?

PDF Page 134



If the measure does not pass, reductions in service levels would 

likely occur, including reductions in hours, book purchases and 

events, as well as reductions in countywide services such as the 

countywide online catalog and book delivery.

Homeowners would not be assessed the tax of $0.22 per $1,000 

of assessed value.

What would happen if the levy does not pass?

PDF Page 135



For more information
visit the WCCLS website at wccls.org/levy

PDF Page 136



RESOLUTION NO. 2020-26 

RESOLUTION OF THE FOREST GROVE CITY COUNCIL 
SUPPORTING WASHINGTON COUNTY REPLACEMENT LOCAL OPTION 

LEVY FOR COUNTYWIDE PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 
BALLOT MEASURE 34-296 

WHEREAS, Washington County is a vital and strategic partner for providing 
necessary law enforcement services; and 

WHEREAS, the Measure replaces the Washington County Public Safety Levy 
expiring June 2021, and which was created in 2000. Replacement maintains and adds to 
countywide public safety services: 

Maintained: 
• Investigation, forensics services and prosecution of homicide and other major 

crimes supporting public safety countywide; 
• Trained mental health responders including deputies and mental health 

professionals helping people in crisis get medical assistance instead of going to 
jail; 

• Juvenile programs reducing crime; 
• Monitoring registered sex offenders and other supervision; 
• Victims' assistance and emergency shelter, including for women and children 

who are victims of domestic violence 

Added : 
• Enhanced prosecution and supervision for domestic violence, child abuse and 

child pornography cases; 
• More deputies to operate the jail at full capacity, minimizing early release of 

offenders; 
• Enhanced diversion programs reducing juvenile crime; 
• Services to quicken the transition from shelter to stable housing, including for 

domestic violence survivors. 

WHEREAS, Five-year, fixed rate of 47¢ per $1,000 of assessed value, an increase 
of 5¢. If approved, this would be the first increase in the rate since original 2000 levy. In 
2021, typical homeowners with an assessed value (not market value) of $300,000 
would pay $141 . 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
FOREST GROVE AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. That the City Council of the City of Forest Grove does hereby endorse 
its support and urges the passage of the Washington County Replacement Local Option 
Levy for Countywide Public Safety Services Ballot Measure 34-296 on the ballot May 19, 
2020. 

Section 2. This resolution is effective immediately upon its enactment by the City 
Council. 

PDF Page 137



PRESENTED AND PASSED this 161h day of March, 2020. 

Attested: Anna D. Ruggles, City Recorder 

APPROVED by the Mayor this 161h day of March, 2020. 

Peter B. Truax, Mayor 

Resolution No. 2020-26 
Page 2 of 2 PDF Page 138



RESOLUTION NO. 2020-27 

RESOLUTION OF THE FOREST GROVE CITY COUNCIL 
SUPPORTING WASHINGTON COUNTY RENEWAL OF LOCAL OPTION 

LEVY TO SUPPORT COUNTYWIDE LIBRARY SERVICES 
BALLOT MEASURE 34-297 

WHEREAS, Washington County Cooperative Library Services (WCCLS) was created 
in May of 1976, to serve all the residents of Washington County; and 

WHEREAS, WCCLS is the primary source of funding for public library operations 
countywide. Additionally, its central support and services link city and community libraries 
together into one system, creating broad access to books and other library materials for 
all county residents; and 

WHEREAS, Measure renews a levy that expires in June 2021. Renewal supports 
member libraries of Washington County Cooperative Library Services (WCCLS) in Aloha, 
Banks, Beaverton, Cedar Mill, Cornelius, Forest Grove, Garden Home, Hillsboro, North 
Plains, Sherwood, Tigard, Tualatin and West Slope. It funds central support and services 
that link libraries together. The expiring levy provides 40% of total WCCLS funding: 

Renewal of the levy helps libraries by: 
• Maintaining open hours at all libraries, avoiding cuts in service; 
• Funding children's reading events, including summer reading and literacy 

programs for preschoolers; 
• Purchasing books and materials that all library users have access to countywide; 
• Providing reading and learning support, including online access and homework 

help designed to improve school success for all students in the county; 
• Maintaining central support and services that link libraries together. 

WHEREAS, the renewed five-year levy continues library services at a fixed rate of 
22¢ per $1,000 of assessed value, which is unchanged from the current rate. In 2021, 
typical homeowners with an assessed value (not market value) of $300,000 
would pay $66. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
FOREST GROVE AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. That the City Council of the City of Forest Grove does hereby endorse 
its support and urges the passage of the Washington County Renewal of Local Option Levy 
to Support Countywide Library Services Ballot Measure 34-297 on the ballot May 19, 2020. 

Section 2. This resolution is effective immediately upon its enactment by the City 
Council. 

PDF Page 139



PRESENTED AND PASSED this 16th day of March , 2020. 

Attested: Anna D. Ruggles , City Recorder 

APPROVED by the Mayor this 16th day of March, 2020. 

Peter B. Truax, Mayor 

Resolution No. 2020-27 
Page 2 of 2 PDF Page 140



   CITY OF FOREST GROVE            P. O. BOX 326          FOREST GROVE, OR 97116            503-992-3200         www.forestgrove-or.gov 

 

  

 
 
CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT 

 

    
TO: City Council 

  
FROM: Jesse VanderZanden, City Manager 

  
MEETING DATE: March 16, 2020 

  
PROJECT TEAM: Paul Downey, Director of Administrative Services  

  
SUBJECT TITLE: Resolution Authorizing Issuance of Refunding Bonds for Pacific University 

 
ACTION REQUESTED:  Ordinance  Order X Resolution   Motion  Informational 

X all that apply 

 

ISSUE STATEMENT:  Due to the favorable interest environment for refinancing, Pacific University 
would like to refinance its Series 2014A, Series 2014B, and Series 2015A Bonds that the City 
issued on behalf of the University.  In order to refinance the bonds, the City is being asked to 
issue new revenue refunding bonds that will refinance these bonds that were issued in 2014 and 
2015.  The City’s Bond Counsel has prepared a resolution authorizing the issuance of the revenue 
refunding bonds. 
 
BACKGROUND:  The City issued the Series 2014A and 2014B Bonds in the principal amount of 
$38,640,000 and the Series 2015A Bonds in the principal amount of $35,425,000.  Both bonds 
were used for various campus improvement projects. 
 
Due to the rapidly decreasing interest rate environment, the University has an opportunity to 
refinance the bonds at a lower interest rate which will allow the University to reduce its interest 
costs and restructure the debt payment schedule.  Since no one is sure how the interest rates will 
move in the near future, the University, like many other entities with bonds, is trying to refinance 
its bonds and get them to market as soon as they can.  The University is asking the City to issue 
new bonds so the bonds can be refinanced.  The amount of the new bonds will be to strictly 
refinance the bonds listed above and pay for all of the costs of issuing the new bonds.  No new 
funds are being borrowed to finance any additional projects. 
 
The City has issued numerous bonds for Pacific University since 1995.  Like all of the other bond 
issues, the University will pay all of the debt service on these bonds.  The City only issues the 
bonds on behalf of the University. The principal and interest on the bonds is payable only from the 
revenues and resources of the University and are not payable by the City of Forest Grove.  If the 
University defaults on the bonds, the City is not liable for any payment on these bonds.  These 
bonds are not a debt of the City nor shall the bonds be payable from any funds of the City or any 

CITY RECORDER USE ONLY: 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM #: 8. 
  

MEETING DATE: 03/16/2020 
 

FINAL ACTION:  
 

 

PDF Page 141



Page 2 of 2 

 
tax levied upon any property within the City nor any other political subdivision of the State of 
Oregon.       
 
As with all other previous resolutions, this resolution authorizes the City Manager or the Director of 
Administrative Services to complete the process to issue the new bonds. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: No City funds are being used to pay the costs of issuing these bonds.  All 
costs of issuing the bonds, including the bond counsel for the City, are the responsibility of the 
University.  There will be some City staff time involved in the process.  The City is charging the 
University a fee of $2,000 to pay for City staff time for the issuance process.  The University pays 
for all costs to issue the bonds. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends the City Council approve the attached 
resolution authorizing the issuance of new refunding revenue bonds to refinance the bonds which 
were issued earlier by the City. 
 
ATTACHMENT(s): Resolution  
 
 

PDF Page 142



-· 
RESOLUTION NO. 2020-28 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF FOREST GROVE, OREGON, AUTHORIZING 
THE ISSUANCE OF REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS TO REFINANCE 

PROJECTS FOR PACIFIC UNIVERSITY 

WHEREAS, the City of Forest Grove, Oregon (the "City") is authorized to refund 
outstanding campus improvement revenue bonds under ORS 350.675 and ORS 287A.360 
to 287A.375; and, 

WHEREAS, the University has requested the City issue refunding revenue bonds to 
refund all or any portion of the City's Campus Improvement Refunding Revenue Bonds 
(Pacific University Project), Series 2014A (Tax-Exempt) and Campus Improvement 
Revenue Bonds (Pacific University Project) , Series 2014B (Federally Taxable) issued in the 
aggregate, principal amount of $38,640,000 (together, the "2014 Bonds") and its Campus 
Improvement Revenue and Refunding Bonds (Pacific University Project) (Series 2015A) 
issued in the aggregate, principal amount of $35,425,000 (the "2015 Bonds" and together 
with the 2014 Bonds, the "Prior Bonds"). 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF FOREST GROVE, 
OREGON (THE "CITY"), AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Revenue Refunding Bonds Authorized. The City hereby authorizes the 
issuance of revenue bonds pursuant to ORS 350.675 and ORS 287A.360 to 287A.375 to 
refund all or any portion of the Prior Bonds. The refunding bonds authorized by this Section 
(the "Refunding Bonds") may be issued in an amount sufficient to refund all or any portion 
of the Prior Bonds, to fund all or a portion of a debt service reserve fund, if any, and to pay 
estimated costs related to those Refunding Bonds. 

Section 2. Security for the Bonds. The Refunding Bonds authorized by this Resolution 
shall be special, limited obligations of the City and shall be payable solely from the revenues 
and resources provided by the University. The Refunding Bonds will not constitute a debt of 
the City nor shall any Refunding Bonds be payable from any funds of the City or any tax 
levied upon any property within the City nor any other political subdivision of the State of 
Oregon. 

Section 3. Delegation. 

The Director of Administrative Services, the City Manager, or the designee of the Director 
of Administrative Services or the City Manager (the "City Official") is hereby authorized on 
behalf of the City and without further action by the City Council, to: 

(A) Issue the Refunding Bonds in one or more series. 

(B) Select one or more underwriters, commercial banks or other investors and negotiate 
the sale of any series of Refunding Bonds with those underwriters, commercial 
banks or investors. 

)1 
I 

PDF Page 143



 
 

Resolution No. 2020-28 
Page 2 of 2 

 
3434593.3 038149  RSIND 

 

(C) Determine the form, final principal amount of the Refunding Bonds, the interest rate 
or rates, fixed or variable, which the Refunding Bonds shall bear, mandatory and 
optional redemption terms, maturity schedules, payment terms and dates, record 
dates, any reserve requirements, and other terms of the Refunding Bonds. 

(D) Engage the services of paying agents, verification agents, escrow agents, financial 
advisors, remarketing agents, trustees, and any other professionals whose services 
are desirable for the financing. 

(E) Prepare, execute, deliver one or more indentures, supplemental indentures, bond 
declarations, loan agreements, or amendments to such documents which shall 
specify the security for each series of the Refunding Bonds, and the terms and 
administrative provisions under which each series of the Refunding Bonds are 
issued, and contain the terms and conditions under which the City shall lend the 
proceeds of each series of the Refunding Bonds to the University.  These documents 
may allow for conversion of the Refunding Bonds into other interest rate modes, 
including conversion from taxable to tax-exempt rates, and may contain additional 
covenants for the benefit of the owners of the Refunding Bonds, providers of credit 
enhancement and reserve sureties. 

(F) Issue any series of Refunding Bonds as “taxable bonds” bearing interest that is 
includable in gross income under the Code. 

(G) Determine whether the savings produced by the refunding are adequate to justify 
the refunding and select the outstanding maturities of the Prior Bonds that will be 
refunded. 

(H) Take any action to call, redeem, defease and prepay the Prior Bonds. 

(I) Execute and deliver any related certificates or documents and take any other action 
in connection with the Refunding Bonds which the City Official finds are reasonably 
required to issue the Refunding Bonds or will be advantageous to the City. 

Section 4. This resolution is effective immediately upon its enactment by the City 
Council. 

 
PRESENTED AND PASSED this 16th day of March, 2020. 

 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Anna D. Ruggles, City Recorder 
  

APPROVED by the Mayor this 16th day of March, 2020. 
 
 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Peter B. Truax, Mayor 

PDF Page 144



   CITY OF FOREST GROVE            P. O. BOX 326          FOREST GROVE, OR 97116            503-992-3200         www.forestgrove-or.gov 

 

  

 

 

 
 
 

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT TO COUNCIL      March 9, 2020 
 
UPCOMING EVENTS: 

March 6 – 11: NLC Congressional Cities Conference, Washington DC 
March 14:  Local Author Fair, Library, 1-4 PM 
March 21:  Chamber Dinner & Auction, 5:30 pm, FG Armory 
March 21:  Why DIY? Self-Sufficiency and American Life, Library, 1-3 PM 
March 27:  Applications due for City Councilor vacancy  
March 31  Gerle Haggard Band: All-female Merle Haggard tribute band, Library, 6:30 PM 

 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS: 

 L&P GIS Data Conversion:    Being drafted.    
 Festival Street Concept Plan (URA):   To be issued March, 2020 
 Audit Services for FY 2020-2022:   Proposals due March 19, 2020  

 Site B Development (URA):    Proposals due April 9, 2020 
 Oak Street Area Concept Plan   Contractor selected; in negotiations. 
 Public Works Pole Building   Contractor selected; in negotiations.  

 

CAPITAL PROJECTS: 

 Staff is getting quotes to demolish the Stutzner building (potential new police facility site) and to put 
gravel on the lot. The house will remain as a residence for volunteer firefighters.  

 Thatcher and Gales Creek Road intersection improvements were surveyed and an intergovernmental 
agreement to allocate costs is being drafted. Council consideration likely in April. 

 Finalizing a bid package for three projects: 1) 19th Avenue paving between C and D Streets; 2) 
Crosswalks and intersection improvements for 21st Avenue and Main Street; 3) Safeway/Goodwill 
Access Improvements. All three projects are alternates and will be done pending funding.  

 Public Works Equipment Storage Building: RA Gray Construction LLC was the lowest of five bids. The 
project is estimated at $500,000. Work to start this summer.  

 

URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY: 

 The third URAC meeting is scheduled for April 2, 2020. Officers were elected at the last meeting. The 
meeting will focus on bylaws and discussion of the Site B process.  

 Two proposals for banner poles on Pacific were received under the URA’s public art program. The 
selection committee will meet to review them on March 13. A preferred alternative will then be sent to 
the URAC and PAC for approval. 

 

CITY HALL: 

 City ads in NT highlighted Energy Conservation Rebates, low income energy assistance program, 
Passport Services, and Community Enhancement Program.  

 Draft Communications Plan nearly complete. Council work session in April 2020. 
 Departments preparing budgets which are due back to Administrative Services March 26, 2020.  Budget 

distributed to the Budget Committee on April 30, 2020.   

 Negotiating with International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers (IBEW).  Executive Session March 16. 
 Current Recruitments: Police Chief, 2 Police Officer Positions, Light & Power Pre-Apprentice Lineman, 

Aquatic Center Administrative Specialist (0.75 FTE), and Part-Time Librarian Assistant. 

 



Page 2 of 4 

 

 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT/ 

 CCI met March 3 to discuss Annual Town Meeting. Considering date in May.  
 Staff is drafting Development Code amendments to address the Neighborhood Mixed Use (NMU) issue. 

Work Session is planned with the Planning Commission on April 6.  

 Director will be chaperoning student delegates to the NLC Conference March 6 – 11.  
 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT: 

 Forest Grove accepted into the Oregon Main Street Program at the exploring level. Oregon Main Street 
will be presenting their program to downtown business owners on May 12. 

 Submitted early stage lead to Business Oregon for a manufacturing facility at Poplar Lane Industrial Park. 
 Met with Adelante Mujeres on study to identify barriers to business entry for Latinos. Converting “Guide 

to Starting a Business in Forest Grove” to Spanish. Adelante Mujeres to present to EDC in April.  
 Updating maps in downtown kiosks. Expect install in April. 

 Urban Decanter is moving to the corner of Pacific and Main and will be expanding their menu. 
 

ENGINEERING AND PUBLIC WORKS:   

 A Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) application has been submitted and staff made a 
presentation to the CDBG Board for improvements to ‘D’ St. between Pacific and 18th Ave.  Proposed 
improvements include curb, sidewalk, storm sewer and paving. Selections in March-April. 

 The Council Creek Regional Trail obtained approval $1.35 million in Metro Regional Flexible Funds to do 
preliminary design. A draft memorandum of understanding establishing a task force is being prepared.  

 Contractor is almost finished fixing small leaks on the main water and Catching Ct. waterlines. 

 The Joint Water Commission (JWC) is installing new flow meters to standardize with their flow meters. 
 Douglas St. Storm Sewer Extension:  Storm sewer extension project between 14th and 16th is currently in 

the design process, with construction this summer.  
 

POLICE: 

 Officer McGann has advanced to Phase IV of field training program and should be operational by late 
April 2020.  Officers Garvin, Plumeau and Scott graduated from the academy, are currently in Phase II of 
field training, and should be operational by late June 2020. 

 Officer Huson is currently attending the Professional Career Officer Development (PCOD) course at the 
academy. This is a two-week course to refresh officers who have had a break from active law 
enforcement and do not need to attend the 16-week academy. 

 Sergeant King, Officer Shafer, and COS Quinsland are currently attending the Washington County Crisis 
Intervention Training. This is a 40-hour course taught one day a week for five weeks and covers a 
myriad of skills for assisting and coping with the mental health population. Several officers have already 
attended this course with the goal of all department members attending. 

 Department-wide Constitutional Use of Force training was held over the prior two weeks. 
 Community outreach officer Quinsland participated in a landlord forum; assisted with Coffee with a Cop 

at Jennings McCall; coordination for First Responder Career Fair hosted by the National Guard;  and 
continues to organize National Night Out.  

 Code Enforcement:  Issued 44 parking citations; 20 written warnings; 2 Ordinance citations; 3 vehicle 
impounds; 0 vehicle boots; 16 reports, 4 supplemental reports and 1 in-process abatement. 

 

 

 



Page 3 of 4 

 

PARKS & REC: 

 Bids were opened for the Rogers Park and Anna and Abby’s Yard project. Proposals are being evaluated 
and a groundbreaking is being planned for April. 

 The Recreation Commission heard a proposal from the Northwest Trails Alliance to renovate the BMX 
area in North Lincoln Park to be more kid friendly and usable. The Commission voted to move forward 
with the proposal and improvements will be started once the area dries this spring. 

 The Aquatic Center is offering several special classes this spring including Lifeguarding, Water Safety 
Instructor Training, Home Alone and Babysitting.  

 The off leash area (large dog) at Thatcher Park will re-open once the rains slows. Currently the small dog 
area is open along with the winter area.  

 The Recreation Commission is currently taking nominations for Volunteers of the Year. Nominations may 
be sent to Tom Gamble at: tgamble@forestgrove-or.gov.  
 

LIBRARY:  

 Staff underwent extensive space planning during the February 17 all-staff in-service day. Areas of focus 
include Computers, Public Desks, Fireplace area and Young Adult area. The goal is a draft plan by June 
with a final proposal by the end of the year.  

 The library will be hosting a Children's Day/Dia de Los Niños event on Wednesday, April 29, from 6 to 7 
pm. Nationally recognized comedian Angel Ocasio will perform a comedy show, in English and Spanish, 
featuring magic, music, and juggling.  Crafts and snacks will also be provided. 

 Staff has received training in Census 2020. In addition, two public computers will be dedicated for 
completing the Census and assistance will be provided at the Reference Desk. We will be setting up a 
table near the entrances with Census information and also be providing assistance in Spanish during 
scheduled hours. Finally, we are discussing hosting a Mobile Questionnaire Assistance. 

 Recent Displays:  Black History Month; Presidents and First Ladies; Remembering Authors Mary Higgins 
Clark and Clive Cussler; Latinx writers; Women’s History Month 

 
LIGHT & POWER: 

 Power has been installed to Gales Creek Terrace Subdivision Phase 2, an apartment complex in the 2500 
block of A Street and several new homes. 

 Crews have completed replacement of the failing high voltage underground cables feeding several homes 
in the 700 block of Gales Creek Road.  They have now started the replacement of more failing cables at a 
large apartment complex in the 4200 block of Pacific Avenue.   

 Crews are still working in the 17th Avenue / Cedar Street area replacing several aging poles, conductor 
and associated hardware. 

 Sectionalizing devices have been installed on mainline circuits feeding from the City’s edge going north.  
These devices were installed as part of our system reliability program to help reduce the number of 
customers affected when issues arise in our rural areas that cause outages. 

 Crews responded to a car/pole accident near the corner of E Street and Willamina Avenue.  A major 
mainline pole was struck and required immediate replacement.  No power outage events occurred.  

 The recruitment for an entry level pre-apprentice position has received over 380 applicants. This new 
position was created through a vacancy re-classification and does not create a new FTE. 

 We were recently notified that one of our Journeyman Lineman is resigning as of March 5 as he has 
chosen employment with PGE. 

 
 

 

 

mailto:tgamble@forestgrove-or.gov


Page 4 of 4 

 

CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS IN FOREST GROVE: 

NAME LOCATION DESCRIPTION LAND USE 

PERMIT 
STATUS 

BLDG PERMIT 

STATUS 

CONST. 

STATUS 

Kidd Court 22nd Place Subdivision 

7 units 

Approved 4 permits issued Under 

Construction 

Silverstone David Hill Rd Subdivision 

(200 lots) 

Approved 190 lots issued Under 

construction 

Gales Creek Terrace Pacific Ave/  
19th Ave 

Subdivision  
(197 lots) 

Approved 18 lots issued Under 
construction 

Green Grove Thatcher Rd Co-Housing  

(9 lots) 

Approved 6 lots issued Under 

construction 

Smith Orchard Gales Way and 

B Street 

Subdivision 

(7 lots) 

Approved 7 lots issued Under 

construction 

Sunset Crossing Sunset Ave Subdivision  
(33 lots) 

Approved 31 lots issued Under 
Construction 

MGC Pure Chemicals 

of America 

Elm St Industrial New 

(45,817 sf total) 

Approved Certificate of 

Occupancy issued 

Ribbon Cutting 

April 13, 2020 

Wauna Credit Union 

 

Pacific/Hwy 47 Commercial New Approved Temp Cert of 

Occupancy issued 

Pending ROW 

Improvements 

Nectar Marijuana 
Dispensary 

Pacific Avenue 
/Oak Street 

Commercial/Tenant 
Improvement 

Approved Permit Issued Under 
construction 

Rose Grove Park 

Expansion 

Pacific Avenue Manufactured 

Home Park 

Approved  Grading permit 

issued 

Under 

construction 

Green Apartments 19th Avenue Apartments  

(9 units) 

Approved N/A N/A 

FG High School Batting 
Cages/Golf Driving Range 

1549 Hartford 
Drive 

Institution New Approved Permits issued Under 
construction 

Hawthorne Gardens 

Apartments 

2560 

Hawthorne St 

Apartments 

(18 units) 

Approved N/A N/A 

Brooke Meadows 3601 Brooke 

Street 

Subdivision  

(6 lots) 

Approved N/A N/A 

Pacific Woods 2345 – 26th 
Avenue 

Subdivision 
(21 lots) 

In Review N/A N/A 

 



Forest Grove Activity Report

 -

 2,000

 4,000

 6,000

 8,000

 10,000

 12,000

 14,000

 16,000

 18,000

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

Aquatic Center Attendance

14/15 18/19 19/20

 -

 2

 4

 6

 8

 10

 12

 14

 16

 18

 20

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

New Business Licenses

17/18 18/19 19/20

 -

 50

 100

 150

 200

 250

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

Total Building Permits

17/18 18/19 19/20

 -

 2,000

 4,000

 6,000

 8,000

 10,000

 12,000

 14,000

 16,000

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

Library Walk-Ins

14/15 18/19 19/20

 -

 5,000

 10,000

 15,000

 20,000

 25,000

 30,000

 35,000

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

Library Circulation

17/18 18/19 19/20

 -

 500

 1,000

 1,500

 2,000

 2,500

 3,000

 3,500

 4,000

 4,500

 5,000

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

Grove Link Riders

17/18 18/19 19/20

Page 1



Forest Grove Activity Report

 -

 50

 100

 150

 200

 250

 300

 350

 400

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

Fire Department Calls

14/15 18/19 19/20

 -

 5,000

 10,000

 15,000

 20,000

 25,000

 30,000

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

Light & Power Total MWh

14/15 18/19 19/20

 -

 200

 400

 600

 800

 1,000

 1,200

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

Police Dispatch Calls

14/15 18/19 19/20

Page 2


	CC03-16-2020 City Council Meeting Calendar
	CC03-16-2020 CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA
	5:30 PM - WORK SESSION: Council Goals & Objectives Refinement and Council Team Agreement
	- WS PPT 
	- Council Goals 2020-2021
	- Council Goals 2019-20; 2020+
	- Vision Statement
	- Council Team Agreement
	6:30 PM - WORK SESSION: Succession Planning: Employee Retirement
	- WS PPT
	7:00 PM - CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
	8:45 PM - EXECUTIVE SESSION: Labor Negotiations
	1. A. Special Recognition: Sandy Garcia
	 - Certificate of Recognition
	1. B. Proclamation: National CDBG Week
	- Staff Memo
	- Proclamation
	2. Citizen Communications
	3. Consent Agenda:
	3. A. Approve City Council Regular Meeting Minutes of February 10, 2020
	3. B. Approve City Council Work Session (Council/Management Goal-Setting Retreat) Meeting Minutes of February 15, 2020
	3. C. Approve City Counci Work Session (Staff Succession Planning Update) Meeting Minutes of February 24, 2020
	3. D. Approve City Council Regular Meeting Minutes of February 24, 2020
	3. E. Approve CIty Council Executive Session (Exempt Records) Meeting Minutes of February 24, 2020
	3. F. Accept CFC Meeting Minutes
	3. G. Accept HLB Meeting Minutes
	3. H. Building Activity Report for February 2020
	3. I. - 3. J. Staff Report
	3. I. Endorse New Liquor License Application (Limited On-Premises Sales) for Bamen Ramen
	3. J. Endorse Liquor License Renewal Applications for Year 2020:
	1. 7-Eleven
	2. Diversity Cafe
	3. FG Theater
	4. Kaiser Brewing
	5. Kama Aina
	6. La Estrella Tacos
	7. McMenamin's
	8. Pizza Schmizza
	9. The Growler Garage
	4. Additions/Deletions
	5. Presentations:
	5. A. Ballot Measure 34-296 Countywide Public Safety Services
	- PPT
	5. B. Ballot Measure 34-297 Countywide Library Services
	- PPT
	6. Council RESO 2020-26 Supporting Ballot Measure 34-296
	7. Council RESO 2020-27 Supporting Ballot Measure 34-297
	8. RESO 2020-28 Staff Report
	8. RESO 2020-28 Authorizing Issuance Refunding Revenue Bonds to Refinance Projects for Pacific University
	9. City Council Communications
	10. City Manager's Report
	12. Adjournment
	8:45 PM EXECUTIVE SESSION: Labor Negotiations
	9:30 PM Adjournment



